
Please ask for Christine Morgan: Telephone 01775 764454 
e-mail: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

AGENDA

Committee - GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT

Date & Time - Thursday, 3 December 2015 at 6.30 pm

Venue - Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, 
Spalding

Membership of the Governance and Audit:

Councillors: G R Aley (Chairman), C J T H Brewis, T A Carter, P C Foyster, A Harrison 
(Vice-Chairman), C N Johnson and M J Pullen

Revised quorum 3.

Persons attending the meeting are 
requested to turn off mobile telephones 

Member Services
Council Offices, Priory Road
Spalding, Lincs PE11 2XE

Date:  25 November 2015



AGENDA
PLEASE NOTE TIMINGS
ARE APPROXIMATE

TIME
6.30 pm 1. Apologies for absence. 

6.31 pm 2. Declaration of Interests - (Councillors are reminded that 
under the Code of Conduct they are not to participate in 
the whole of an agenda item to which they have a 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interest.  In the interests of 
transparency, councillors may also wish to declare any 
other interests that they have, in relation to an agenda 
item, that supports the Nolan principles detailed within 
the Code of Conduct).

6.32 pm 3. Minutes - To sign as a correct record the minutes of the 
meeting held on 24 September 2015 (copy enclosed).

(Pages 1 - 
8)

6.35 pm 4. HRA Medium Term Financial Plan 2016/17 - 2019/20 - 
To give consideration to the HRA Medium Term 
Financial Plan 2016/17 – 2019/20 (report of the 
Executive Director Commercialisation to follow)

7.00 pm 5. SHDC Annual Audit Letter 2014/15 - (report of KPMG 
enclosed)

(Pages 9 - 
14)

7.15 pm 6. External Audit Progress Report and Technical Update - 
(report of KPMG enclosed)

(Pages 15 
- 36)

7.30 pm 7. Internal Audit Update Report - To update the Committee 
on progress with the Audit Plan – September to 
November 2015 (report of the Audit and Risk Manager 
(Audit Lincolnshire) and the Executive Director 
Commercialisation enclosed). 

(Pages 37 
- 66)

7.45 pm 8. Mid Term Treasury Report 2015/16 - To provide an 
update of the treasury management position of the 
Council as at 30 September 2015 (report of the 
Executive Director Commercialisation enclosed)

(Pages 67 
- 80)

8.00 pm 9. Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum 
Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual 
Investment Strategy 2016/17 - To provide pre-decision 
scrutiny to the strategy being proposed (report of the 
Executive Director Commercialisation enclosed)

(Pages 81 
- 118)

8.15 pm 10. Governance and Audit Self-Assessment - The Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 
advocate that it is good practice for Audit Committees to 
undertake regular assessments.  Thus enabling 
members to gain an appreciation of what affords best 

(Pages 
119 - 126)



practice, to confirm the level of compliance being 
achieved, and to identify any potential areas for 
enhancements to be made to arrangements (report of 
the Finance Manager enclosed)

8.30 pm 11. Quarterly Risk Report - To inform the Committee of the 
current status of the Council’s strategic risks (report of 
the Executive Director for Strategy and Governance to 
follow)

8.40 pm 12. Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme - To 
set out the Work Programme of the Governance and 
Audit Committee (report of the Executive Manager 
Governance enclosed)

(Pages 
127 - 132)

8.45 pm 13. Any other items which the Chairman decides are urgent. 

NOTE: No other business is permitted unless by 
reason of special circumstances, which 
shall be specified in the minutes, the 
Chairman is of the opinion that the item(s) 
should be considered as a matter of 
urgency.

8.46 pm 14. To consider resolving that, under Section 100A (4) of the 
Local Government Act 1972, the public be excluded from 
the meeting for the following item of business on the 
grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Act. 

8.47 pm 15. Internal Audit Service Provision - To detail the approach 
proposed for Internal Audit Services at South Holland 
District Council from 1 April 2016 (report of the Executive 
Director Commercialisation to follow)



This page is intentionally left blank



- 11 -

Minutes of a meeting of the GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE held in  
Meeting Room 1, Council Offices, Priory Road, Spalding, on Thursday, 24 
September 2015 at 6.30 pm.

PRESENT

G R Aley (Chairman) 

T A Carter P C Foyster M J Pullen

Apologies for absence were received from or on behalf of Councillors C J T H Brewis, 
A Harrison and C N Johnson, Lucy Pledge (Head of Audit and Risk Management, 
Audit Lincolnshire) and the Shared Executive Director Commercialisation. 

In Attendance:  John Cornett (Director, KPMG), Helen Brookes (Manager, KPMG), 
John Scott (Audit Manager, Audit Lincolnshire), the Finance Manager, the Interim 
Chief Accountant, the Senior Finance Analyst (CPBS), the Corporate Improvement 
and Performance Team Leader, the Business Intelligence Officer, the Finance 
Accountant (CPBS), the Finance Assistant (CPBS) and the Democratic Services 
Officer.

Action By
12. DECLARATION OF INTERESTS 

There were none. 

13. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting of the Governance and Audit 
Committee meeting held on 25 June 2015 were signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record. 

14. ISA 260 REPORT 14/15 

Consideration was given to KPMG’s report to those charged with 
governance (ISA260) for 2014/15.  It summarised the key 
findings arising from their audit of South Holland District 
Council’s 2014/15 financial statements and their work to support 
their 2014/15 conclusion on the Authority’s arrangements to 
secure economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of 
resources (VFM conclusion).

The headline messages detailed within the report were as 
follows:

 Proposed audit opinion – KMPG anticipated issuing an 
unqualified audit opinion on the Authority’s financial 
statements by 30 September 2015.  They would also report 
that SHDC’s Annual Governance Statement complied with 
guidance issued by CIPFA/SOLACE in June 2007. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3.



- 12 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 24 September 
2015

 Audit adjustments – KPMG reported that their audit of 
SHDC’s financial statements did not identify any material 
adjustments.  The Authority made a small number of 
adjustments, all of which were of a presentational nature.  
There was no impact on the General Fund.  

 Key financial statements audit risks – KPMG had identified 
the following key financial statements audit risks in their 
2014/15 External Audit Plan, issued in April 2015: 1) 
Management override of controls; 2) Fraudulent revenue 
recognition; and 3) Consolidation of joint ventures.  They had 
worked with officers throughout the year to discuss these key 
risks and their detailed findings were reported in section 3 of 
the report.  There were no matters of any significance arising 
as a result of their audit work in these key risk areas.

 Accounts production and audit process – The Authority had 
good processes in place for the production of the accounts 
and exemplary quality supporting working papers.  Officers 
dealt efficiently with audit queries and the audit process had 
been completed within the planned timescales.

 Completion – At the date of the report, KPMG’s audit of the 
financial statements was complete.  Before they could issue 
their opinion, they required a signed management 
representation letter.  KPMG confirmed that they had 
complied with requirements on objectivity and independence 
in relation to this year’s audit of the Authority’s financial 
statements.

 VFM conclusion and risk areas – KPMG had concluded that 
the Authority had made proper arrangements to secure 
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources.  
They therefore anticipated issuing an unqualified VFM 
conclusion by 30 September 2015. 

KPMG commented that there were no recommendations arising 
from work undertaken, which reflected the quality of the work 
that they had audited.  They also wished to express their thanks 
to the Chief Accountant and the Senior Finance Analyst for all 
their assistance.

AGREED:

That the ISA260 report for 2014/15 be noted. 

15. APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2014-15 

Consideration was given to the report of the Shared Executive 
Director (Commercialisation), which sought approval for the 
annual governance statement for inclusion within the Council’s 
published financial statements, and the approval of the audited 

Page 2



- 13 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 24 September 
2015

2014-15 financial statements for publication.

The pre-audit 2014-15 financial statements were presented to the 
Committee on 25 June 2015.  Since that time, KPMG had been 
working to establish the correctness of the accounts, checking 
them against the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 
in the United Kingdom 2014-15, and the Council’s own accounting 
policies.  

The report updated the Committee on the progress of the audit, 
and asked members to formally approve the statements for 
publication, having considered the issues raised by the auditor 
under the previous agenda item.

A small number of presentational adjustments were required to 
ensure compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014-15.  No amendments 
were required to be made to the primary Financial Statements, 
and the level of resources available to the Council remained the 
same.

At the same meeting, the Committee considered and commented 
on the draft Annual Governance Statement.  Appendix A reflected 
minor changes to the draft version, these arising from 
improvements to Governance arrangements outlined in the 
Internal Annual Audit Report.

The Annual Governance Statement was required to be signed by 
the Leader of the Council and the Chief Executive.  The 
committee was requested to approve the statement to allow it to 
be published with the financial statements.

The Finance Manager stated that he wished to thank the Senior 
Finance Analyst and his team for what had been a very 
successful exercise in preparing the accounts and supporting the 
audit.  These sentiments were re-iterated by the Chairman of the 
Committee. The Senior Finance Analyst also thanked his team for 
their work.  KPMG’s involvement in the process was also noted by 
the Finance Manager.

AGREED:

a) That the 2014-15 Financial Statements be approved;

b) That the 2014-15 Annual Governance Statement be approved; 
and 

c) That the Letter of Representation be approved. 

Page 3



- 14 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 24 September 
2015

16. INTERNAL AUDIT UPDATE REPORT 

Consideration was given to the report of the Audit and Risk 
Manager (Audit Lincolnshire) and the Finance Manager, which 
updated the Committee on progress with the Audit Plan for the 
period May 2015 to August 2015.

The purpose of the report was to:

 Advise of progress being made with the 2015/16 Audit Report;
 Provide details of the audit work during the period;
 Provide details of the current position with agreed 

management actions in respect of previously issued reports; 
and

 Update the committee on any changes to the 2015/16 Audit 
Plan and any other matters that may be relevant to the 
Governance and Audit Committee role.

Since the last progress report, 10 audits had been completed, 8 to 
final report stage and 2 to draft report.  Work was progressing 
with the 2015/16 plan as follows:

 Audits complete 11%
 Audits in progress 12%
 Audits scheduled

o Quarter 2 13%
o Quarter 3 24%
o Quarter 4 27%

 Audits unallocated/contingency 13%

Appendix 3 to the report provided details of audit areas and 
proposed audit dates.

There were two audits relating to the 2014/15 plan – ICT Strategy 
and projects; and ICT Software.  These were at draft stage. The 
auditors were working with CPBS to complete these, and they 
would be reported to the next meeting.

Housing Benefit subsidy detailed audit testing work had been 
completed, and the results had been passed to KPMG for 
assessment.

The tracking of audit recommendations would be through the 
Covalent system in the near future.  The auditors were working 
with management to help update the system with a formal follow 
up of all outstanding recommendations planned in 
October/November.  The resulting audit report was scheduled to 

Page 4



- 15 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 24 September 
2015

be presented to the Governance and Audit Committee on 3 
December 2015.  

The following audit work had been completed, and a final report 
issued.  Further information on each of these was detailed in 
Appendix 2 to the report:

Substantial assurance

 Housing Benefits
 Property Plant and equipment (key controls)
 Council tax (key controls)
 NNDR (key controls)
 Partnerships
 ICT Security (follow up)

Limited assurance

 Accounts payable
 ICT Mobile devices

The following 2015/16 audits were currently in progress:

 Housing benefit subsidy testing – complete and awaiting 
KPMG review September 2015

 Housing Rents – Rent setting, calculation and billings, as well 
as income collection and arrears management were to be 
assessed.

 Housing Planned Maintenance – Audit would review the 
housing planned maintenance programme to ensure effective 
management and delivery of housing modernisation projects, 
which supported the Council’s Housing objectives. 

Audits for the following were being prepared:

 Contract Management – The effectiveness of current contract 
management would be examined

 Human Resources – The relationship between the Council 
and CPBS to assess the effectiveness of Human Resources 
service delivery by CPBS

 Income – Review of key income areas including Planning fees, 
South Holland Centre income and Car Park charges.

Finally, a number of other matters were detailed:

 Delivering Good Governance in Local Government: 
Framework (CIPFA/SOLACE) – The introduction of new 

Page 5



- 16 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 24 September 
2015

responsibilities and the development of new collaborative 
structures and ways of working provided challenges for 
ensuring transparency, demonstrating accountability and, in 
particular, for managing risk.  It was crucial therefore that 
leaders and chief executives kept their governance 
arrangements up to date and relevant.  In response to these 
challenges, CIPFA and SOLACE were undertaking a 
fundamental review of the Framework: Delivering Good 
Governance in Local Government to ensure that it remained 
‘fit for purpose’. A consultation on the new draft Framework 
was available on the CIPFA website until 28 September, and a 
link to this was included within the report.

 Audit shadowing – Discussions were being held with officers 
around the potential for members to shadow one or two 
internal audits so that they could get a better understanding of 
the audit process.  This would be taken forward from October 
onwards. 

 Training and Development – Training and Development 
formed a key part of maintaining the Committee’s 
effectiveness.  It was proposed to re-launch the successful 
networking group – Lincolnshire’s Audit Committee Forum – 
inviting public sector bodies across Lincolnshire.  This forum 
provided Audit Committees with a way to share good practice 
and receive topical updates and relevant training.

The Committee was advised that relevant training would be 
provided just after Christmas 2015 and members agreed that they 
would find this very useful.  They commented that they would find 
shadowing the audit team particularly helpful and that this should 
be taken forward in small groups.  It was agreed that officers 
liaise with auditors and Committee members to arrange dates for 
training to be undertaken.

AGREED:

a) That the report be noted; and

b) That officers liaise with members of the Governance and Audit 
Committee and auditors to arrange dates in early 2016 for 
relevant training and shadowing of auditors to be undertaken.    

CM 

17. STRATEGIC RISK REPORT 

Consideration was given to the Executive Director of Strategy and 
Governance which updated the Committee on the current status 
of strategic risks.

The last risk report to the Governance and Audit Committee was 

Page 6



- 17 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 24 September 
2015

in March 2015.  Since then, routine performance and risk 
reporting had been temporarily suspended to allow for the review 
of performance and risk frameworks and the implementation of a 
new corporate ICT system to support their delivery.  The 
frameworks had been reviewed and a system (Covalent) had 
been procured, and was currently being populated to cover all 
performance indicators, risks and projects as part of phase 1 of its 
implementation.

The report being considered was the first risk report to be 
generated using the new system, and contained status updates 
on strategic risks only for 2015/16 to date.  Future quarterly 
reports would also contain details of high scoring operational 
risks, which were yet to be fully implemented into the new system, 
expected by the end of quarter 3.

Strategic risks had been reviewed and updated with responsible 
members of the Executive Management Team (EMT).  The 
strategic risk register included eight strategic risks (detailed at 
Appendix A to the report).  These covered the over-arching risks 
that could affect the strategic direction of the Council, rather than 
risks linked to business continuity or those that affected discreet 
service areas.  

Strategic risks were captured on the Corporate Dashboard, 
reviewed by EMT quarterly.  In addition, risks were reviewed 
monthly at the officer-led Performance, Risk and Audit Board, 
chaired by the Executive Director of Strategy and Governance.

Strategic Risks – These typically affected the whole of the 
organisation and not just one or more parts of it.  Strategic risks 
could potentially involve very high stakes and often affected the 
ability of the organisation to survive, e.g. impact on the ability of 
the Council to achieve its corporate plan objectives and purpose.  
Strategic risks were managed at Board (EMT) level.

Operational risks – These referred to potential impacts and losses 
arising from the normal operations.  They affected the day-to-day 
running of operations and organisation systems.  Operational 
risks were managed at directorate and/or service level.

The Risk Framework was currently under review, alongside the 
implementation of the new ICT system.  As part of this review, the 
risk matrix had been changed from a 3 x 3 to a 5 x 5 matrix, 
based on best practice in comparable organisations.  This 
provided a more comprehensive assessment and understanding 
of risk likelihood and impact.  The matrix resulted in a numerical 
score which combined the impact of the risk occurring with the 

Page 7



- 18 -

GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT - 24 September 
2015

likelihood of it happening.  Risks fell into High, Medium or Low 
categories, depending on their rating. 

The Committee considered the report and agreed that the report 
did seem easier to read than previous versions.

AGREED:

That the report be noted. 

18. GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT COMMITTEE WORK 
          PROGRAMME

Consideration was given to the report of the Executive Manager 
Governance which presented the Work Programme of the 
Governance and Audit Committee, as set out in Appendix A within 
the report.

AGREED:

That the report be noted. 

(The meeting ended at 7.06 pm)

(End of minutes)

Page 8



Annual Audit Letter 
2014/15

South Holland District Council
October 2015

P
age 9

A
genda Item

 5.



1© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. KPMG 
and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

Contents

The contacts at KPMG 
in connection with this 
report are:

John Cornett

Engagement Lead
KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 0116 256 6064

john.cornett@kpmg.co.uk

Helen Brookes 

Manager
KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 07919 228632

helen.brookes@kpmg.co.uk

Jon Machej

Assistant Manager

KPMG LLP (UK)

Tel: 0115 935 3430

jon.machej@kpmg.co.uk

Page

Report sections

■ Headlines 2

Appendices

1. Summary of reports issued

2. Audit fees

3

4

This report is addressed to the Authority and has been prepared for the sole use of the Authority. We take no responsibility to any member of staff acting in their individual capacities, or 
to third parties. The Audit Commission issued a document entitled Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and Audited Bodies summarising where the responsibilities of auditors 

begin and end and what is expected from audited bodies. We draw your attention to this document which is available on Public Sector Audit Appointment’s website (www.psaa.co.uk).

External auditors do not act as a substitute for the audited body’s own responsibility for putting in place proper arrangements to ensure that public business is conducted in accordance 
with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively.

We are committed to providing you with a high quality service. If you have any concerns or are dissatisfied with any part of KPMG’s work, in the first instance you should contact John 
Cornett, the engagement lead to the Authority, who will try to resolve your complaint. If you are dissatisfied with your response please contact the national lead partner for all of 

KPMG’s work under our contract with Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, Trevor Rees (on 0161 246 4000, or by email to trevor.rees@kpmg.co.uk). After this, if you are still 
dissatisfied with how your complaint has been handled you can access PSAA’s complaints procedure by emailing generalenquiries@psaa.co.uk, by telephoning 020 7072 7445 or by 

writing to Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited, 3rd Floor, Local Government House, Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ.

P
age 10

mailto:john.cornett@kpmg.co.uk
mailto:helen.brookes@kpmg.co.uk
mailto:jon.machej@kpmg.co.uk


2© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. KPMG 
and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

Section one
Headlines

This report summarises the 
key findings from our 
2014/15 audit of South 
Holland District Council.

Although this letter is 
addressed to the Members 
of the Authority, it is also 
intended to communicate 
these issues to key external 
stakeholders, including 
members of the public.  

Our report covers the audit 
of the Authority’s 2014/15 
financial statements and the 
2014/15 VFM conclusion.

All the issues in this Annual 
Audit Letter have been 
previously reported. The 
detailed findings are 
contained in the reports we 
have listed in Appendix 1.

VFM conclusion We issued an unqualified conclusion on the Authority’s arrangements to secure value for money (VFM conclusion) for 
2014/15 on 29 September 2015. This means we are satisfied that the Authority had proper arrangements for securing 
financial resilience and challenging how it secures economy, efficiency and effectiveness. 

To arrive at our conclusion we looked at the Authority’s financial governance, financial planning and financial control 
processes, as well as the arrangements for prioritising resources.

VFM risk areas We undertook a risk assessment as part of our VFM audit work to identify the key areas impacting on our VFM conclusion 
and considered the arrangements you have put in place to mitigate these risks.

Our initial risk assessment work at the planning stage of the audit identified no significant matters.

Audit opinion We issued an unqualified opinion on the Authority’s financial statements on 29 September 2015. This means that we 
believe the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Authority and of its expenditure and
income for the year. 

Financial statements 
audit

We are pleased to report that our audit of your financial statements did not identify any material adjustments. The 
Authority made a small number of adjustments, all of which were of a presentational nature. The quality of working papers 
supporting the accounts was exemplary.

Annual Governance 
Statement

We reviewed your Annual Governance Statement and concluded that it was consistent with our understanding of your 
governance arrangements.

Whole of Government 
Accounts

The Authority prepares a consolidation pack to support the production of Whole of Government Accounts by HM Treasury. 
We are not required to review your pack in detail as you fall below the threshold where an audit is required. As required by 
the guidance we have confirmed this with the National Audit Office. 

Key recommendations We did not find it necessary to raise any recommendations as a result of our work.

Certificate We issued our certificate on 29 September 2015. The certificate confirms that we have concluded the audit for 2014/15 in 
accordance with the requirements of the Audit Commission Act 1998 and the Audit Commission’s Code of Audit Practice. 

Audit fee Our fee for 2014/15 was £59,382, excluding VAT which is the same as the fee proposed in our External Audit Plan issued 
in February 2015. Further detail is contained in Appendix 2.

P
age 11



3© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. KPMG 
and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

Appendices
Appendix 1: Summary of reports issued

This Appendix summarises 
the reports we issued since 
our last Annual Audit Letter.

December

2015

January

February

March

April

May

June

July

August

September

October

November

Audit Fee Letter (April 2015)

The Audit Fee Letter set out the proposed audit 
work and draft fee for the 2015/16 financial year. 

Auditor’s Report (September 2015)

The Auditor’s Report included our audit opinion on 
the financial statements along with our VFM 
conclusion and our certificate. Annual Audit Letter (October 2015)

This Annual Audit Letter provides a summary of the 
results of our audit for 2014/15.

External Audit Plan (February 2015)

The External Audit Plan set out our approach to the 
audit of the Authority’s financial statements and to 
work to support the VFM conclusion. 

Report to Those Charged with Governance 
(September 2015)

The Report to Those Charged with Governance 
summarised the results of our audit work for 
2014/15 including key issues and recommendations 
raised as a result of our observations. 

We also provided the mandatory declarations 
required under auditing standards as part of this 
report.

P
age 12



4© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved. KPMG 
and the KPMG logo are registered trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. 

Appendices
Appendix 2: Audit fees

To ensure transparency about the extent of our fee relationship with the 
Authority we have summarised below the outturn against the 2014/15 
planned audit fee.

External audit

Our final fee for the 2014/15 audit was  £59,382 which is in line with the 
planned fee. 

Certification of grants and returns 
Under our terms of engagement with Public Sector Audit Appointments 
we undertake prescribed work in order to certify the Authority’s housing 
benefit grant claim. This certification work is still ongoing. The final fee 
will be confirmed through our reporting on the outcome of that work in
January 2016. 

Other services

We charged additional fees of £29,000 for support for the development 
of a business plan for a newly formed Council owned local housing 
company.

This Appendix provides 
information on our final fees 
for the 2014/15 audit.

P
age 13



© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK public limited liability partnership and a member firm 
of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG 
International Cooperative, a Swiss entity. All rights reserved.

The KPMG name, logo and ‘cutting through complexity’ are registered 
trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International Cooperative (KPMG 
International).

P
age 14



External audit progress 
report and technical 

update

South Holland District Council
November 2015

P
age 15

A
genda Item

 6.



1© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 
All rights reserved.

External audit progress report and technical update – November 2015

This report provides the 
Governance and Audit 
Committee with an overview 
on progress in delivering our 
responsibilities as your 
external auditors.

The report also highlights 
the main technical issues 
which are currently having 
an impact in local 
government. 

If you require any additional 
information regarding the 
issues included within this 
report, please contact a 
member of the audit team.

We have flagged the articles 
that we believe will have an 
impact at the Authority and 
given our perspective on the 
issue:

 High impact

 Medium impact

 Low impact

 For info

PROGRESS REPORT

External audit progress report 3

KPMG RESOURCES

KPMG/Shelter report: Fix the housing shortage or see house prices quadruple in 20 years 5

KPMG publication titled: Value of Audit: Perspectives for Government 6

Audit Committee Institute: Local Government Seminar Series – Autumn 2015 7

TECHNICAL UPDATE

New local audit framework  9

Local Government Association’s 2015 Spending Review submission  10

Reporting developments – Infrastructure assets  11

CIPFA survey on infrastructure assets  12

Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014: 
Provisions affecting auditors’ work from 1 April 2015  13

Proposed changes to business rates and core grant  17

APPENDIX

Appendix 1 – 2015/16 audit deliverables 19

P
age 16



Progress report

P
age 17



3© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 
All rights reserved.

External audit progress report – November 2015

This document provides 
the Governance and Audit 
Committee with a high 
level overview on 
progress in delivering our 
responsibilities as your 
external auditors.

At the end of each stage 
of the audit we issue 
certain deliverables, 
including reports and 
opinions. A summary of 
progress against these 
deliverables is provided 
in Appendix 1 of this 
report. 

Area of responsibility Commentary

Financial statements We will discuss the outcome of the 2014/15 audit with officers during January 2015.

We are in the process of planning our 2015/16 audit, and we will be holding further discussions with 
officers to identify the key issues and to obtain a general update on the Authority. 

Value for Money The National Audit Office is responsible for the Code of Audit Practice and supporting guidance, and it 
has just closed its consultation process on the future Value for Money (VFM) audit approach. We will 
update officers and this committee once further information is available on the revised VFM Guidance.

Certification of claims 
and returns

We are currently undertaking certification work on the Authority’s housing benefit grant claim and we 
expect to meet the deadline of 30 November 2015.

P
age 18



KPMG resources

P
age 19



5© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 
All rights reserved.

KPMG resources

Area Comments

KPMG/Shelter 
report: Fix the 
housing 
shortage or see 
house prices 
quadruple in 20 
years

Without a radical programme of house building, average house prices in England could double in just ten years to £446,000 at current prices, 
according to research. In twenty years they could quadruple, with the average house price estimated to rise to over £900,000 at current prices by 
2034 if current trends continue.

The research from KPMG and Shelter also reveals that more than half of all 20-34 year olds could be living with their parents by 2040, as soaring 
housing costs caused by the shortage of affordable homes leave more and more people priced out of a home of their own.

The warning comes in a landmark report from KPMG and Shelter outlining how the 2015 government can turn the tide on the nation’s housing 
shortage within a single parliament. With recent government figures showing that homeownership in England has been falling for over a decade, 
the consequences of our housing shortage are already being felt.

The report sets out a blueprint for the essential reforms that will increase the supply of affordable homes and stabilise England’s rollercoaster 
housing market. It calls on politicians to commit to an integrated range of key measures, including:

■ giving planning authorities the power to create ‘New Homes Zones’ that would drive forward the development of new homes. Combined with 
infrastructure, this would be led by local authorities, the private sector and local communities, and self-financed by sharing in the rising value of 
the land;

■ unlocking stalled sites to speed up development and stop land being left dormant, by charging council tax on the homes that should have been 
built after a reasonable period for construction has passed;

■ introducing a new National Housing Investment Bank to provide low cost, long term loans for housing providers, as part of a programme of 
innovative ways to finance affordable house building;

■ helping small builders to get back into the house building market by using government guarantees to improve access to finance; and

■ fully integrating new homes with local infrastructure and putting housing at the very centre of City Deals, to make sure towns and cities have 
the power to build the homes their communities need.

To read the report, visit www.kpmg.com/UK/en/IssuesAndInsights/ArticlesPublications/Pages/building-the-homes-we-need–programme-
2015.aspx

P
age 20

http://www.kpmg.com/UK/en/IssuesAndInsights/ArticlesPublications/Pages/building-the-homes-we-need%E2%80%93programme-2015.aspx


6© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 
All rights reserved.

KPMG resources

Area Comments

KPMG 
publication 
titled: Value of 
Audit –
Perspectives 
for Government

What does this report address?

This report builds on the Global Audit campaign – Value of Audit: Shaping the future of Corporate Reporting – to look more closely at the issue of 
public trust in national governments and how the audit profession needs to adapt to rebuild this trust. Our objective is to articulate a clear opinion 
on the challenges and concepts critical to the value of audit in government today and in the future and how governments must respond in order to 
succeed.

Through interviews with KPMG partners from nine countries (Australia, Canada, France, Germany, Japan, the Netherlands, South Africa, the UK 
and the US) as well as some of our senior government audit clients from Canada, the Netherlands and the US, we have identified a number of 
challenges and concepts that are critical to the value of audit in government today and in the future.

What are the key issues?

■ The lack of consistent accounting standards around the world and the impacts on the usefulness of government financial statements. 

■ The importance of trust and independence of government across different markets.

■ How government audits can provide accountability thereby enhancing the government’s controls and instigating decision-making.

■ The importance of technology integration and the issues that need to be addressed for successful implementation

■ The degree of reliance on government financial reports as a result of differing approaches to conducting government audits

The Value of Audit: Perspectives for Government report can be found on the KPMG website at https://home.kpmg.com/xx/en/home/insights.html

The Value of Audit: Shaping the Future of Corporate Reporting can be found on the KPMG website at www.kpmg.com/sg/en/topics/value-of-
audit/Pages/default.aspx

P
age 21

https://home.kpmg.com/xx/en/home/insights.html
http://www.kpmg.com/sg/en/topics/value-of-audit/Pages/default.aspx


7© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 
All rights reserved.

KPMG resources

Area Comments

Audit 
Committee 
Institute: Local 
Government 
Seminar Series 
– Autumn 2015

Our Audit Committee Institute (‘ACI’) events have been designed to provide you with sessions that help you consider the challenges faced by 
Local Government bodies today, and to help you think about the questions you want to be asking in relation to the assurance you need.

Our bespoke seminars are tailored to your needs, offering you the opportunity to discuss and share best practice with your peers. They will 
encourage and spark debate and give you the opportunity to reflect on your role and how your organisation can meet the challenges ahead.

Our Autumn Local Government sessions in October 2015 were led by specialists from our dedicated Local Government practice and focused on 
hot topics such as Audit Procurement, Cyber Crime, Early Accounts Closure, Infrastructure Assets and Internal Audit thought Leadership.

Our next event is currently being arranged for early 2016.

P
age 22



Technical update 

P
age 23



9© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 
All rights reserved.

Technical update

Area Level of 
impact

Comments KPMG 
perspective

New local audit 
framework



Medium

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 included transitional arrangements covering the audit contracts 
originally let by the Audit Commission in 2012 and 2014. These contracts covered the audit of accounts up to 
2016/17, and gave the Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) the power to extend 
these contracts to 2019/20.

DCLG have now announced that the audit contracts for large local government bodies (including district, 
unitary and county councils, police and fire bodies, transport bodies, combined authorities and national parks) 
will be extended to include the audit of the 2017/18 financial statements. From 2018/19, local government 
bodies will need to appoint their own auditors; it is not yet clear whether there will be a sector-led body that is 
able to undertake this role on behalf of bodies.

NHS and smaller local government bodies (town and parish councils, and internal drainage boards), will not 
have their contracts extended, and will have to appoint their own auditors for 2017/18, one year earlier than for 
larger local government bodies such as South Holland District Council.

We understand 
guidance is 
being prepared 
by CIPFA on the 
request of the 
NAO.  

We will also be 
preparing a 
briefing note for 
clients.

P
age 24



10© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 
All rights reserved.

Area Level of 
Impact

Comments KPMG 
perspective

The Local 
Government 
Association’s 
2015 Spending 
Review 
submission



Medium

In June 2015, the Local Government Association (LGA) set out proposals for the Government to consider as 
part of the Spending Review, aimed at streamlining public services, growth generating investment and social 
care and health – all while saving the public purse almost £2 billion a year by the end of the Parliament.

The submission focusses on five core issues originally highlighted in A Shared Commitment, published in 
early 2015. The LGA hopes that local government can work with central government to balance the nation’s 
books while improving public services and the local economic environment by delivering new, transformed 
and high-quality local services while at the same time reducing costs to the public sector.

The LGA believes the Spending Review should:

■ enable wider integration of social care and health services to deliver savings and improve outcomes This 
requires the annual £700 million funding gap in social care services to be closed and a transformation fund 
worth £2 billion in each year of the Spending Review period be created to allow new ways of working to 
become commonplace. The Spending Review should also implement a single place-based budget for 
delivering all local services through a Local Public Services Fund as part of at least five devolution deals;

■ promote growth and productivity by accepting the case for further devolution of powers and funding that 
stretches beyond 25 November. The LGA is calling for devolution of, or local influence over, more than £60 
billion of growth, skills and infrastructure funding over the Spending Review period, including:

‒ the components for an ambitious and effective Local Growth Fund with agreed settlements in devolution 
deals that last until 2020/21

‒ a central-local partnership to deliver effective and targeted skills and employment initiatives

‒ unlocking the ability of councils to contribute to the Government’s target of 275,000 affordable homes 
built over the lifetime of the Parliament.

■ help councils adequately resource and deliver high quality public services by transforming the business 
rate mechanism and providing a four year local government finance settlement; and

■ help councils focus on driving efficiency and value for money through an assessment of the impact of 
unfunded cost burdens that core council budgets are going to face over the Spending Review period.

The Committee 
may wish to seek 
assurances that 
the impact for 
their Authority is 
understood. 

Technical update

P
age 25

http://www.local.gov.uk/documents/10180/6869714/L15-252+Spending+Review_WEB_new.pdf/3101e509-1e22-4c26-91ac-8fd8a953aba5


11© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 
All rights reserved.

Technical update

Area Level of 
impact

Comments KPMG 
perspective

Reporting 
developments –
Infrastructure 
assets



Medium

CIPFA/LASAAC, the group that produce the Code of Practice for Local Authority Accounting, have confirmed 
that transport infrastructure assets owned by local authorities will be required to be included in the accounts 
from 2016/17. This would require prior period adjustments for 2015/16, including the opening position at 1 
April 2015.

The changes require local authorities to recognise the value of all transport infrastructure assets using the 
depreciated replacement cost method, i.e. the cost required to replace the asset with a new replacement 
depreciated over the life of the existing asset. Transport infrastructure assets include:

■ roads, bridges, roundabouts and traffic calming measures;

■ footways, footpaths and cycle tracks;

■ tunnels and underpasses; and

■ water supplies and drainage systems, as they support the assets identified above.

Even non-highway authorities will be affected to the extent that footways etc are material to their accounts. 
Railway assets are not currently included in the proposals, although it is possible that these may be included 
in subsequent periods.

CIPFA have issued a Code of Practice on Transport Infrastructure Assets which contains the requirements to 
be included in the Local Authority Code. This is available to purchase from the CIPFA website.

Local authorities should have developed a project plan to identify all of the relevant transport infrastructure 
they own and a timetable for valuing these. CIPFA expects authorities to have undertaken the 1 April 2015 
valuations by 31 December 2015.

The Whole of Government Accounts submission includes unaudited data on transport infrastructure assets. 
2013/14 data indicates assets of over £400 billion will be accounted for on local authority balance sheets. 
However, only 93% of authorities provided this information, and of these less than 70% used actual inventory 
data to complete the return. This indicates that the sector faces a significant challenge in accurately identifying 
the assets it owns and will have to account for.

The Committee 
may wish to 
enquire of 
officers whether 
a project plan 
has been 
developed to 
address the 
requirements 
and review 
progress against 
this on a regular 
basis. 

P
age 26



12© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 
All rights reserved.

Technical update

Area Level of 
impact

Comments KPMG 
perspective

CIPFA survey 
on 
infrastructure 
assets



Medium

On 26 August CIPFA sent a letter to Treasurers’ Societies and Directors’ of Finance groups for onward 
circulation to authorities drawing attention to CIPFA’s survey to assess the readiness of bodies for the 
introduction of depreciated replacement cost (DRC) for highways infrastructure assets in 2016/17.

The letter from CIPFA’s Chief Executive is available here: 
www.cipfa.org/~/media/files/policy%20and%20guidance/local%20authority%20transport%20infrastructure/150
826-tia-survey-letter-signed-rw.pdf?la=en

The online survey tool can be found here: www.surveymonkey.com/r/NGC8MXH

CIPFA is encouraging responses from both accountants and highways engineers, either jointly or separately. 
The letter has also been sent to the Highways Asset Management and Financial Information Group (HAMFIG) 
to bring this to the attention of relevant authorities’ highways engineers.

The Committee 
may wish to 
enquire of 
officers whether 
the online survey 
has been 
completed and 
any gaps be 
amended in the 
project plan

P
age 27

http://www.cipfa.org/%7E/media/files/policy%20and%20guidance/local%20authority%20transport%20infrastructure/150826-tia-survey-letter-signed-rw.pdf?la=en
https://www.surveymonkey.com/r/NGC8MXH


13© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 
All rights reserved.

Technical update

Area Level of 
Impact

Comments KPMG 
perspective

Local Audit and 
Accountability 
Act 2014 –
provisions 
affecting 
auditors’ work 
from 1 April 
2015



Low

With effect from 1 April 2015, certain provisions of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 (LAAA 2014) 
came into force and are applicable to auditors’ work for the year 2015/16. Whilst the Audit Commission Act 
1998 is transitionally saved for auditors engaged in planning work for 2015/16, or possibly considering public 
interest reports (PIRs) to be made during 2015/16, they need to be aware of the provisions of LAAA 2014 that 
are already in force.

Provisions affecting auditors’ work with effect from 1 April 2015 are:

1) New duty to publish PIRs on audited bodies’ websites

Under the new audit regime, there is an emphasis on the publication of relevant information on the relevant 
authority’s website. The following provisions are relevant to auditors carrying out work on 2015/16 if they 
decide to issue a public interest report during the audit.

Under Schedule 7 LAAA 2014, the following matters must be published on the relevant authority’s website (if it 
has one):

■ PIRs (relating to the relevant authority or a connected entity);

■ notice of a meeting to consider a PIR/written recommendation; and

■ notice summarising those decisions approved by the auditor as a result of consideration of the 
PIR/recommendation.

Where the relevant authority does not have a website, it is instead generally required to make the relevant 
publication “in such manner as it thinks is likely to bring the notice or report to the attention of persons who live 
in its area”. This could be, for example, in a local newspaper (as was required in certain cases under the 
previous legislation).

The Committee 
need to be aware 
of the provisions 
that are in place 
from 1 April 2015

P
age 28



14© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 
All rights reserved.

Technical update

Area Level of 
Impact

Comments KPMG 
perspective

Local Audit and 
Accountability 
Act 2014 –
provisions 
affecting 
auditors’ work 
from 1 April 
2015 
(continued)



Low

2) Prohibition on disclosure

The prohibition against disclosure that was previously to be found in section 49 of the Audit Commission Act 
1998 has been repealed and replaced by provisions in Schedule 11 of LAAA 2014. This change has not been 
transitionally introduced and auditors and local authority bodies need to be aware that this applies to all audits, 
irrespective of the year. Thus, any reference to the prohibition against disclosure needs to be to Schedule 11 
and not section 49. There are no material differences between the two sets of provisions.

3) Connected entities

LAAA 2014 introduces a new concept into the audit regime, “connected entities”. Connected entities are 
bodies that are separate to the relevant authority, but are associated with the authority in such a manner that 
requires the authority to record financial information relating to the entity in its accounts.

The full definition of “connect entities” is set out in paragraph 8 of Schedule 4 LAAA 2014.

For the purposes of this Act, an entity (“E”) is connected with a relevant authority at any time if E is an entity 
other than the relevant authority and the relevant authority considers that, in accordance with proper practices 
in force at that time:

■ the financial transactions, reserves, assets and liabilities of E are to be consolidated into the relevant 
authority's statement of accounts for the financial year in which that time falls;

■ the relevant authority's share of the financial transactions, reserves, assets and liabilities of E is to be 
consolidated into the relevant authority's statement of accounts for that financial year; or

■ the relevant authority's share of the net assets or net liabilities of E, and of the profit or loss of E, are to be 
brought into the relevant authority's statement of accounts for that financial year.

The Committee 
need to be aware 
of the provisions 
that are in place 
from 1 April 2015

P
age 29



15© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 
All rights reserved.

Technical update

Area Level of 
Impact

Comments KPMG 
perspective

Local Audit and 
Accountability 
Act 2014 –
provisions 
affecting 
auditors’ work 
from 1 April 
2015 
(continued)



Low

3) Connected entities (continued)

Authorities have a number of duties in relation to their connected entities under LAAA 2014 beyond those 
which are expanded on below:

■ Auditors have a right to access documents (at all reasonable times) relating to connected entities, as well 
as those relating to the “parent” relevant authority. The auditor can inspect, copy or take away documents. 
The auditor can also require people who are in possession or are accountable for the document (or have 
been in the past) to provide the auditor with any information or explanation that may be needed, and can 
require a meeting with such persons. Where a document is stored electronically, the auditor can require 
assistance from the relevant person at the connected entity or relevant authority in accessing the 
document. The connected entity must provide the auditor with such facilities and information as are 
reasonably required to carry out the audit functions.

■ The right to information and explanation, or to require a meeting, extends in relation to connected entities 
to:

‒ any persons elected or appointed to an entity;

‒ any employee of the entity; and

‒ an auditor of the accounts of the entity.

Many of the provisions on PIRs and written recommendations in Schedule 7 apply to connected entities. 
Accordingly, auditors must consider whether a PIR should be made on any matter coming to their attention 
during the audit and relating to the authority and/or a connected entity. Similarly, an auditor may make a 
written recommendation to a relevant authority relating to a connected entity.

The Committee 
need to be aware 
of the provisions 
that are in place 
from 1 April 2015

P
age 30



16© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 
All rights reserved.

Technical update

Area Level of 
Impact

Comments KPMG 
perspective

Local Audit and 
Accountability 
Act 2014 –
provisions 
affecting 
auditors’ work 
from 1 April 
2015 
(continued)



Low

4) Power to call for information: exception for legally professionally privileged information

Section 22(12) LAAA 2014 clarifies that the auditor’s right to information and documents cannot be used to 
compel disclosure of legally privileged information. If a person would be entitled to refuse to produce 
documents in legal proceedings in reliance on the doctrine of legal professional privilege, they are equally 
entitled to refuse to provide the relevant information or documents to the auditor. This is a notable new 
provision and auditors will need to bear this in mind in requesting sight of an audited body’s own legal advice. 
Any provision of such will be voluntary and cannot be compelled.

The Committee 
need to be aware 
of the provisions 
that are in place 
from 1 April 2015

P
age 31



17© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 
All rights reserved.

Technical update

Area Level of 
Impact

Comments

Proposed
changes to 
business rates 
and core grant



For 
Information

The Chancellor of the Exchequer has proposed some radical reforms of local government finance. The proposals are that by the 
end of the decade, councils will retain all locally raised business rates but will cease to receive core grant from Whitehall.

The Chancellor set out the landmark changes in a speech to the Conservative party conference in Manchester, saying it was time 
to face up to the fact that “the way this country is run is broken”.

Under the proposals, authorities will be able to keep all the business rates that they collect from local businesses, meaning that 
power over £26 billion of revenue from business rates will be devolved, he said

The uniform national business rate will be abolished, although only to allow all authorities the power to cut rates. Cities that choose 
to move to systems of combined authorities with directly elected city wide mayors will be able to increase rates for specific major 
infrastructure projects, up to a cap, likely to be set at 2p on the rate. 

The system of tariffs and top-ups designed to support areas with lower levels of business activity will be maintained in its present 
state.

P
age 32



Appendix

P
age 33



19© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss entity. 
All rights reserved.

Deliverable Purpose Timing Status

Planning 

Fee letter Communicate indicative fee for the audit year April 2015 Complete

External audit plan Outline our audit strategy and planned approach

Identify areas of audit focus and planned procedures

March 2016 TBC

Substantive procedures

Report to those charged 
with governance 
(ISA+260 report)

Details the resolution of key audit issues.

Communication of adjusted and unadjusted audit differences.

Performance improvement recommendations identified during our audit.

Commentary on the Authority's VFM arrangements.

September 2016 TBC

Completion

Auditor’s report Providing an opinion on your accounts (including the Annual Governance Statement).

Concluding on the arrangements in place for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in your use of resources (the VFM 
conclusion).

September 2016 TBC

WGA Concluding on the Whole of Government Accounts consolidation pack in accordance with guidance issued by the National Audit Office. September 2016 TBC

Annual audit letter Summarise the outcomes and the key issues arising from our audit work for the year. October 2016 TBC

Certification of claims and returns

Certification of claims 
and returns report

Summarise the outcomes of certification work on your claims and returns for Government departments. January 2016 In progress

Appendix 1 – 2015/16 Audit deliverables

P
age 34



© 2015 KPMG LLP, a UK limited liability partnership and a member 
firm of the KPMG network of independent member firms affiliated with 
KPMG International Cooperative (“KPMG International”), a Swiss 
entity. All rights reserved.

The KPMG name, logo and “cutting through complexity” are 
registered trademarks or trademarks of KPMG International. 

P
age 35



T
his page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Audit & Risk Manager (Audit Lincolnshire) and Executive Director - 
Commercialisation

To: Governance & Audit Committee – 3 December 2015 

(Author: Lucy Pledge – Head of Audit & Risk Management (Audit 
Lincolnshire)
Julie Kennealy – Executive Director Commercialisation

Subject: Internal Audit Update Report

Purpose: To update the Committee on progress with the Audit Plan - 
September to November 2015

Recommendation: 

1) That the Committee considers the content and outcomes of Internal Audit 
work and identifies any action required

1.0 BACKGROUND AND KEY MESSAGES

1.1 The purpose of this report is to:

 Advise of progress being made with the 2015/16 Audit Plan
 Provide details of the audit work during the period
 Provide details of the current position with agreed management actions 

in respect of previously issued reports
 Update the committee on any changes to the 2015/16 Audit Plan and any 

other matters that may be relevant to the Governance and Audit 
Committee role.

Key Messages 

1.2 Since the last progress report we have completed 3 audits – 2 to final report 
stage and 1 to draft report. Reports on ICT Strategy and Projects and ICT 
Software remain at draft stage as we are still in the process of agreeing 
management actions with SHDC, ELDC and CPBS. 

1.3 Work is progressing with the 2015/16 plan as follows:

 Audits complete 36%
 Audits in progress 19%
 Audits Scheduled 

o Qtr3 6%
o Qtr4  34%

 Combined assurance 5%

Page 37

Agenda Item 7.



1.4 Details of audit areas and proposed audit dates are given in Appendix 3. 
Given the nature of any risk-based plan, changes occur or events happen that 
impact on delivery of the originally agreed plan e.g.:

 Timescales need changing to ensure that the audit delivers effective and 
relevant assurance

 Initiatives have been slower to implement than anticipated therefore 
changing the potential type of work / assurance required e.g. consultancy / 
sounding board for new systems and developments - rather than 
assurance on an implemented initiative

 Operational requests by management to reschedule the audit 
 Risk profile changes during the year

1.5 Consequently, following discussion with the Executive Director – 
Commercialism, we are proposing the following changes to the Internal Audit 
Plan 2015/16 (with the revised plan days being 204 (including subsidy)).

Deletions from the Plan:

Audit Reason for Change Days Assurance for Head 
of Internal Audit 
opinion (March 2016)

Asset & Property 
Management

Review of this service is 
included within the 
Council's Transformation 
Programme and therefore 
audit review would not add 
value at this time.

10 Assurances to be 
gained from 
Transformation 
Programme. 

Procurement & 
Project 
Management follow 
up

These areas are currently 
subject to management 
review.

10 Assurances to be 
gained through 
Management, 1st line 
of assurance.

 

Additions to the Plan:

Audit Indicative Scope Days

Housing  Benefits Risk based audit on Housing Benefit expanded to 
include extra days sample testing on the accuracy 
and classification of benefit claims to give early 
indication of issues on the annual Housing 
Benefits Subsidy claim.

Addnl 5 
days

Page 38



Performance 
Management

We are focussing our review of performance 
management to consider progress on the 
implementation of the new performance 
management system – Covalent.

Addnl 
10 days

1.6 Following discussion with Executive Directors we have agreed to hold the 
CSU audit pending the outcome of an operational review that is currently 
underway. We have drawn on some additional resource in order to be on track 
for delivery of the revised plan by 31 March 2016. 

 
1.7 As agreed with the Committee at the last meeting, we have completed a follow 

up with managers on progress with all outstanding audit recommendations. In 
future the Council plans to track audit recommendations through the Covalent 
performance management system. Whilst the majority of recommendations 
made on audits from the 2014/15 plan have been implemented, a number of 
High Priority recommendations remain outstanding (a summary is provided 
below).

 
Internal Audit work completed from September to November 2015

1.8 The following audit work has been completed and a final report issued: 

High
(formally Effective)

Substantial
(formally Some 
improvement needed)

Limited 
Assurance
(formally Major 
improvement needed)

Low
(formally Inadequate)

Housing Rents
Housing – Planned 
Maintenance

Note: The Governance & Audit Committee should note that the assurance 
expressed is at the time of issue of the report but before the full implementation of 
the agreed management action plan.  Definitions levels are shown in Appendix 1. 

1.9 In the audits given Substantial Assurance, we confirmed that the Council has 
sound processes in place as follows:

Housing Rents

Based on the sample tested we were able to confirm that housing rents are 
being charged correctly and have been increased in line with Government 
guidance.  The Council is considering the impact of the Summer Budget 
where rents are to reduce by 1% for the next four years from 2016/17 and 
other measures e.g. the benefit cap being reduced.

Income is being collected timely and accurately posted to the general ledger 
and rent accounts. Regular reconciliations between the Income Collection, 
Housing and Finance systems confirm all income has been accounted for.

Page 39



There are a small number of areas where controls could be enhanced 
including:

 Authorisation of the new year rent increases by senior management
 Ensuring that the Housing team are advised when rent arrears have been 

approved for write off by Members
 Accounts with the bailiffs should be monitored and when returned actioned 

on the Northgate Housing system
 Action taken timely on former tenant arrears account to increase the 

chance of recovery.

Housing – Planned Maintenance

For the planned maintenance contracts we sampled the programmes are 
working well:
  
 The work is approved annually as part of the capital programme 
 Work to be undertaken is based on the decent homes surveys 
 Regular meetings are held with the contractors
 Surveys of properties are undertaken and work is only paid when it has 

been confirmed that the work has been carried out satisfactorily.  
 Tenants appear happy with works carried out with a high percentage 

satisfaction rate reported for the contracts.

An area which could be strengthened for all contracts is the review and 
reporting of contract performance.  Currently tenant satisfaction is reported 
through the Corporate Performance management system, but there is very 
little other performance information reported through to management or 
formally discussed at contractor liaison meetings, for example client 
satisfaction for the product, defects, health and safety.  

Audits in Progress

1.10 Our review of key income collection areas (Planning Fees, South Holland 
Centre income and Car Parking charges) is at draft report stage.  The 
outcome is positive and the majority of expected controls are in place.

1.11 The following 2015/16 audits are currently in progress:

Human Resources
We are seeking to provide assurance around the effectiveness of HR service 
delivery to the Council by CPBS.

Housing Benefits
We will be undertaking a review of housing benefit administration to provide 
independent assurance that there are sound internal controls within the 
system and that the Councils’ resources are being protected. The key focus of 

Page 40



the work will involve substantive testing on areas of the subsidy claim with 
known issues. 

Two members of SHDC's Governance and Audit Committee will be shadowing 
this audit as part of the Member development programme.

ICT – Starters, Movers and Leavers
Our work will provide assurance around the processes to deal with ICT access 
for starters, movers and leavers.

1.12 We are preparing audits for: 

Contract Management & Performance Management
We are currently working with the Corporate Improvement and Performance 
Manager to scope these audits in more detail.  Initial discussions indicate 
these reviews will cover:

Contract Management – the arrangements in place with Procurement 
Lincolnshire to support the Council's procurement

Performance Management – a follow up of issues highlighted by the previous 
audit in this area and review of the implementation of the Covalent 
performance management system.

Follow Up of Outstanding Audit Recommendations

1.13 We have followed up outstanding audit recommendations from audits 
completed in 2013/14 and 2014/15.  Responses from managers have 
determined that 70% of the recommendations that were due for 
implementation by the end of October 2015 have been actioned.  There are 
nine high recommendations outstanding relating to six audits and progress 
has been reported as follows:

 
CPBS Governance – the CPBS Board is awaiting a report on IT system 
capacity and proposes that recommendations for investment will be included 
in the 2016/17 CPBS Business Plan.  Note - Internal Audit understands that 
the Plan has now been prepared and we intend to follow up this 
recommendation.

Health & Safety – work is progressing to ensure that all current and 
prospective contractors are fully vetted and approved prior to commencing 
work for the Council. This is due to be completed by 31 December 2015.

Housing Revenue Account – our follow up review of the 2012 Housing 
Revenue Account audit highlighted outstanding point around governance and 
risk management.  Management are reviewing governance arrangements 
again following the recent shared management restructure. HRA risks are to 
be added to Covalent.

Page 41



Mobile Devices – Our audit highlighted that remote working policies for 
remote devices would benefit from a refresh and potential risks around the 
capacity to open corporate data on these devices. The revision of the policy 
has been delayed due to CPBS reprioritisation of work and CPBS are awaiting 
a decision from the Council on whether the ability to open documents should 
be restricted.

Property Services & Gas Servicing – there are 2 high priority audit 
recommendations outstanding relating to gas safety. The implementation of 
the action plan produced by an independent inspection of housing gas safety 
management will be complete by 31 March 2016. Work is in progress to 
address the gas safety management within non-housing assets by using the 
Housing Property gas service contractor who carried out 2015 inspections.

Procurement – the Procurement Team is currently completing a full review of 
practice and governance across both SHDC and Breckland Councils. Contract 
data is being collected and analysed and there will be meetings with service 
managers to advise on exit and re-tendering arrangements on all contracts 
that originally breached procurement regulations.

The Executive Director – Commercialisation is to take the lead with Directors 
in addressing the reasons for agreed management actions remaining 
outstanding.  The Committee will receive a further update on outstanding audit 
recommendations at the meeting in March 2016.

Performance Information

1.14 The programme of work for 2015/16 is shown at Appendix 3

1.15 Our current 2015/16 performance against targets is shown below: 

Performance Indicator Target Actual @ Nov 
2015

Percentage of 15/16 plan 
completed.

100% 
(revised plan)

36%

Percentage of key financial 
systems completed.

100% Annual Indicator

Percentage of recommendations 
agreed.

100% 100%

Percentage of recommendations 
implemented 15/16 audits falling 
due

100% or escalated 70%

Page 42



Performance Indicator Target Actual @ Nov 
2015

Timescales Draft report issued within 
10 working days of 
completing audit. (target 
100%)

Final report issued within 
5 working days of 
closure meeting / receipt 
of management 
responses. (target 
100%)

Audit completed to draft 
report stage within two 
months of starting 
fieldwork (target 80%)

100%

100%

100%

Client Feedback on Audit (average) Good to excellent Excellent

Note – details relate to audit work at final report stage.

Other Matters of Interest

Lincolnshire Counter Fraud Partnership

1.16 The Lincolnshire Counter Fraud Partnership (consisting of Lincolnshire County 
Council and all seven district councils) has been fully operational since May 
2015. The priorities of the Principal Investigator appointed to oversee and 
deliver the project are guided by the comprehensive work plan in place. 

1.17 Progress is being made in key areas of the partnership's workplan.   These 
include:

 Establishment of fraud networks – this work is helping develop a greater 
understanding of fraud risks facing the partner authorities, sharing of best 
practice and transfer of fraud intelligence across Lincolnshire

 Developing an overarching Communications Plan.  The initial 
communications since the Partnership was created have included press 
releases, radio interviews and articles.  County wide publicity is generating 
an increased response to the Lincolnshire Authorities Fraud hotline – 
issues reported include Housing and Blue Badge Fraud

 A county wide fraud risk register is also being developed. The outcomes 
from this risk assessment work will help prioritise areas for future pro-active 

Page 43



counter fraud work.  Fraud risk workshops are currently being held with 
district councils to establish registers specific to each partner

 Fraud 'health checks' using the CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the 
Risk of Fraud and Corruption.  Our initial assessment suggests further 
work is required within all partner authorities to strengthen arrangements.

1.18 Current projects designed to detect fraud and error include:

 Council Tax Single Person Discount (SPD) – at 6 November 2015 this 
project has generated net 'savings' of £621k, of which £87,365 relates to 
SHDC. A total of 2253 discounts have been removed (378 SHDC) and 342 
penalties applied across the county.

 A pilot to address Council Tax reduction fraud within partner authorities 
has so far realised £37k in savings and identified 22 cases where fixed 
penalties have been imposed

1.19 These projects were approved, funded and implemented through the 
Partnership.  We believe the initial results are encouraging and demonstrate 
the value in joint working across partner authorities and the potential for long 
term sustainability of the partnership.      

CIPFA Audit Committee Update 18

1.20 In the recent Audit Committee update the CIPFA Better Governance Forum 
has provided some guidance on self-assessment and improving effectiveness 
for Audit Committees. The guidance includes a suggested approach for 
assessment through considering 4 broad areas:

 whether the committee is meeting  recommended practice for committees 
in its sector

 whether the committee is addressing its areas of responsibility adequately
 whether the members have acquired the necessary knowledge and skills 

to be effective 
 whether the committee is adding value to the organisation

The document also provides advice on how to undertake the assessment and 
acting on its results.  A copy of the update is provided as Appendix 4.

Lincolnshire Audit Committee Forum

1.21 Members will be familiar with the Lincolnshire Audit Committee Forum – an 
Audit Committee networking group to enable sharing of good practice, 
emerging governance and risk issues and hot topics for public sector audit 
committees.  It is designed to help and support audit committees 
effectiveness.  

We plan to host an all-day forum event in February 2016 (supported by 
KPMG).  Indicative agenda:

Page 44



Morning (Chairman and Vice-Chairman)
 What makes an effective audit committee
 Information sharing
 Hot topics

Networking lunch

Afternoon (open to all members of the Audit Committee)
 Cyber risk 
 Thinking about risk

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 Consider the content and outcomes of Internal Audit work and identify any 
action required.

2.2 Do nothing.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 To monitor Internal Audit progress including the results of Audit work.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS 

4.1 To meet the Audit Committee’s Terms of Reference in monitoring the work of 
Internal Audit.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Constitution & Legal

5.1.1 The progress report forms part of the Committee’s agreed Work Plan, and is 
linked to the Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 requirement to undertake 
an effective internal audit.

5.2 Contracts

5.2.1 It is the opinion of the report author that there are no direct Contract 
implications.  However, it should be noted that Contract Management is an 
area to be audited as part of the Internal Audit Plan and Schedule for 2015/16.

5.3 Corporate Priorities

5.3.1 It is the opinion of the report author that there are no direct Corporate Priority 
implications.  However, some areas that have been, or in the future will be 
audited have links to SHDC’s Corporate Priorities

5.4 Equality and Diversity / Human Rights

Page 45



5.4.1 It is the opinion of the report author that there are no direct Equality and 
Diversity/Human Rights implications.  However, there could be some impact 
as a result of any recommendations arising from the process or individual 
audits.  Any Equality and Diversity /Human Rights issues arising will be taken 
into consideration

5.5 Financial 

5.5.1 Reduction in Audit Plan cost.

5.6 Risk Management 

5.6.1 Internal Audit undertakes work under an agreed Audit Plan to ensure that the 
Council has sound processes in place.
Their critical review or assessment of activities establishes the situation with 
the Authority regarding service delivery arrangements, management of risks 
and the operation of controls and/or performance.

5.7 Staffing

5.7.1 It is the opinion of the report author that there are no direct Staffing 
implications.  However, there could be some impact as a result of any 
recommendations arising from the process or individual audits.  Any Staffing 
issues arising will be taken into consideration.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 No wards/communities are affected

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 ICT Information Communication Technology
CPBS Compass Point Business Services
SHDC South Holland District Council
NNDR National Non Domestic Rates
HRA Housing Revenue Account
CMT Corporate Management Team
FOI Freedom of Information
EIR Environmental Information Regulations
CSU Construction Services Unit

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer

Name/Post: Lucy Pledge - Head of Audit & Risk Management, Audit Lincolnshire
Telephone Number: 01522 553692
Email: lucy.pledge@lincolnshire.gov.uk

Page 46

mailto:lucy.pledge@lincolnshire.gov.uk


Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting:  
Lucy Pledge – Head of Audit & Risk Management – Audit Lincolnshire; 
Julie Castledine – Principal Auditor – Audit Lincolnshire

Key Decision: No 

Exempt Decision: No 

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix 1 – Assurance Definitions
Appendix 2 – Audits with Limited Assurance
Appendix 3 – Internal Audit Plan & Schedule
Appendix 4 - CIPFA Better Governance Forum Audit Committee Update 18

Page 47



Appendix 1 - Assurance Definitions1 

High Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a high level of 
confidence on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, and the 
operation of controls and / or performance.  

The risk of the activity not achieving its objectives or outcomes is low.  
Controls have been evaluated as adequate, appropriate and are operating 
effectively.

Substantial Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a substantial level of 
confidence (assurance) on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, 
and operation of controls and / or performance.

There are some improvements needed in the application of controls to manage 
risks. However, the controls have been evaluated as adequate, appropriate and 
operating sufficiently so that the risk of the activity not achieving its objectives is 
medium to low.  

 

Limited Our critical review or assessment on the activity gives us a limited level of 
confidence on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, and 
operation of controls and / or performance.

The controls to manage the key risks were found not always to be operating or 
are inadequate. Therefore, the controls evaluated are unlikely to give a 
reasonable level of confidence (assurance) that the risks are being managed 
effectively.  It is unlikely that the activity will achieve its objectives.

Low
Our critical review or assessment on the activity identified significant concerns 
on service delivery arrangements, management of risks, and operation of 
controls and / or performance.

There are either gaps in the control framework managing the key risks or the 
controls have been evaluated as not adequate, appropriate or are not being 
effectively operated. Therefore the risk of the activity not achieving its objectives 
is high.

1 These definitions are used as a means of measuring or judging the results and impact of matters 
identified in the audit. The assurance opinion is based on information and evidence which came to our 
attention during the audit.  Our work cannot provide absolute assurance that material errors, loss or 
fraud do not exist. 

Page 48



Appendix 2 – Audits where assurance is assessed as ‘Limited Assurance” or 
“Low”

There are no audits to report with this level of assurance.

END OF APPENDIX 2

Page 49



Appendix 3 Internal Audit Plan and Schedule 2015/16

Area Days Indicative Scope Planned 
Start Date

Actual 
Start Date

Final 
Report 
Issued

Status / 
Assurance Level 
Given

Quarter 1
Housing Benefit Subsidy 
testing

25 Part of the grant claims audit by the External 
Auditor

June 2015 June 2015 N/A Complete 

Quarter 2
Housing – Planned 
Maintenance

12+3 We will review the housing planned 
maintenance programme to ensure effective 
management and delivery of housing 
modernisation projects, which support the 
Council’s Housing objectives.

Additional days covering system migration.

July 2015 August 
2015

November 
2015

Complete

Key control testing 

4.Income*
5.Payroll*

15
(all key 

controls)

Delivery of key control testing to enable the 
Head of Internal Audit to form an opinion on 
the Council’s financial control environment.

Revised 
Feb 16.

Key Income areas / 
collection and banking

12 Risk based review:

Car parking
Planning 
South Holland Centre

Sept 2015 Oct 2015 Draft report issued

Housing Rents 12 Risk Based review. July 2015 July 2015 Oct 2015 Complete

P
age 50



Area Days Indicative Scope Planned 
Start Date

Actual 
Start Date

Final 
Report 
Issued

Status / 
Assurance Level 
Given

Quarter 3
Construction Services 
Unit (CSU)

12 This review will focus on the work of the 
CSU (Construction Services Unit) which is 
the Council’s responsive repair function. We 
shall examine the effectiveness of repairs 
delivery to tenants and leaseholders which 
contribute to the Council’s wider housing 
objectives.

Revised
Q4

Planned audit 
under discussion – 
start date revised 
to new year at 
management 
request pending 
outcome of 
operational review.

Contract Management 10 Rolled forward audit from 2014/15.

To provide assurance that key contracts are 
managed effectively – focus likely to be 
around Procurement Lincolnshire.

Nov / Dec 
15

Scoping meeting 
arranged with 
Corporate 
Improvement & 
Performance 
Manager.

Key Control Testing -

1.Accounts Payable*
2.Council Tax/NNDR*

See 
above

Delivery of key control testing to enable the 
Head of Internal Audit to form an opinion on 
the Council’s financial control environment.

Revised

March 16
Dec 15 
/Jan 16

Housing Benefits 10 + 5 Risk Based review:

To provide assurance that there are sound 
internal controls within the administration of 
housing benefits and that the Councils' 
resources are being protected.

A key focus will be substantive testing on 

Nov 2015 Audit brief issued 
for agreement.

P
age 51



Area Days Indicative Scope Planned 
Start Date

Actual 
Start Date

Final 
Report 
Issued

Status / 
Assurance Level 
Given

the accuracy of claims processing and their 
classification within a Housing Benefits 
Subsidy Claim.

People Management 12 The relationship between the Council and 
CPBS to assess the effectiveness of Human 
Resources service delivery by CPBS.

Oct 2015 Oct 2015 Audit fieldwork in 
progress.

Combined Assurance 10 Development of a Council assurance map 
and assisting in production of a status report

TBA EMT considering 
whether this work 
is still required.

Quarter 4
Key Control Testing -
1.Bank reconciliation*
2.Accounts Receivable*
3. Property, Plant & 
Equipment*

See 
above

Delivery of key control testing to enable the 
Head of Internal Audit to form an opinion on 
the Council’s financial control environment.

Revised 
Mar 16

Budget management* 6 Risk Based review Revised 
Feb 16

General Ledger* 6 Risk based review Revised 
Feb 16

Performance 
management follow up

15 Follow up review to a previous Limited 
assurance report. 

Our work will include a review of the 
introduction of the Covalent performance 
management system.

Jan 16 Scope amended at 
management 
request.

Project 
management & 

P
age 52



Area Days Indicative Scope Planned 
Start Date

Actual 
Start Date

Final 
Report 
Issued

Status / 
Assurance Level 
Given
Procurement not 
included at this 
time.

ICT Audit 20 ICT Disaster Recovery*
Access/Starters/Leavers/Movers*

Jan 16
Nov 15

*Joint reviews with 
ELDC
This will be 
covered in Q3 
subject to 
agreement with 
officers

Other relevant areas
Follow up of 
recommendations

5 Ongoing 
quarterly

Non-Audit
Advice / liaison 6 Ongoing
Annual Report 2 Completed
Audit Committee 6 Ongoing

Total Audit Plan for 
2015/16

204**

Other Work

ICT Strategy & Project 
Management

10 March 
2015

B/F Draft report 
stage with SHDC / 
ELDC

ICT Software      10 March 
2015

B/F Draft report 
stage with SHDC / 

P
age 53



Area Days Indicative Scope Planned 
Start Date

Actual 
Start Date

Final 
Report 
Issued

Status / 
Assurance Level 
Given
ELDC

Risk Management      10 Risk management extended advice. Jan 2016 B/F 2014/15

*Selected financial audits will be completed by ELDC auditors (see asterix* audits). The ELDC audit team is an Audit Lincolnshire partner. 
ELDC are also the lead auditors for CPBS.  For the selected audits ELDC apply an equal resource and undertake a joint audit. For ICT ELDC 
have a 15 day ICT audit allocation.

**The base plan is 193 days – the proposed changes revise this total to 159.  20 days have been carried forward from 2014/15 and the subsidy 
claim testing is charged in addition to 159 days.  The remaining ICT work and Risk Management are also carried forward from 2014/15.P

age 54



1 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Issue 18 

Self-assessment and Improving Effectiveness 

Appointment and Procurement of External Auditors 

Regular Briefing on Current Issues 

 

 

Audit Committee Update 
Helping Audit Committees to Be Effective 

 
 

 

 

CIPFA Better Governance Forum 

 

November 2015 

Page 55



1 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

 

Introduction  

Dear audit committee member, 

This is the 18th issue of Audit Committee Update and our main focus this time is on self-

assessment and effectiveness. 

For audit committees in the public services making the most of the available resources, 

supporting good governance and ensuring accountability are core areas of concern on the 

audit committee agenda. It makes sense therefore that the same standards are applied to 

the operation of the committee itself. This issue aims to support that process with some 

practical suggestions about undertaking a self-assessment and reviewing your own 

effectiveness. 

The remainder of this issue focuses on keeping you up to date with new developments. As 

well as our regular briefing covering recent reports and guidance we also feature a more 

detailed briefing on the recent decisions about the timetable for the appointment of external 

auditors.  

Overall I hope you will find this issue interesting, informative and helpful in your work on 

the committee. 

Best wishes 

Diana Melville 

CIPFA Better Governance Forum  

Sharing this Document  

Audit Committee Update is provided to subscribers of the Better Governance Forum for use 

within their organisations. Please feel free to circulate it widely to your organisation’s audit 

committee members and colleagues. It can also be placed on an intranet. It should not be 

shared with audit committee members of organisations that do not subscribe to the Better 

Governance Forum or disseminated more widely without CIPFA’s permission. 

Audit Committee Update is covered by CIPFA’s copyright and so should not be published on 

the internet without CIPFA’s permission. This includes the public agendas of audit 

committees. 

Receive our Briefings Directly 

This briefing will be sent to the main contact of organisations that subscribe to the CIPFA 

Better Governance Forum with a request that it be sent to all audit committee members. 

If you have an organisational email address (for example jsmith@mycouncil.gov.uk) then 

you will also be able to register on our website and download any of our guides and 

briefings directly. To register now, please visit www.cipfa.org/Register. 

  

Page 56

mailto:jsmith@mycouncil.gov.uk
http://www.cipfa.org/Register


2 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

Previous Issues of Audit Committee Update 

You can download all the previous issues from the CIPFA Better Governance Forum website. 

Click on the links below to find what you need. 

Issue Principal Content Link 

Issues from 2010 

1 Reviewing the Audit Plan – Please note that Issue 13 provides 

an updated review of this topic. 

Issue 1 

2 Reviewing the Annual Governance Statement – Issue 10 

includes an update on this topic. 

Issue 2 

3 Countering Fraud – Please note that Issue 15 provides an 

updated review of this topic. 

Issue 3 

Issues from 2011 

4 Strategic Risk Management, Governance Risks in 2011, Role of 

the Head of Internal Audit 

Issue 4 

5 Understanding the Impact of IFRS on the Accounts, Key 

Findings from CIPFA’s Survey of Audit Committees in Local 

Government 

Issue 5 

6 Partnerships from the Audit Committee Perspective Issue 6 

Issues from 2012 

7 Assurance Planning, Risk Outlook for 2012, Government 

Response to the Future of Local Audit Consultation 

Issue 7 

8 Commissioning, Procurement and Contracting Risks Issue 8 

9 Reviewing Assurance over Value for Money Issue 9 

Issues from 2013 

10 Public Sector Internal Audit Standards and Updates to Guidance 

on Annual Governance Statements 

Issue 10 

11 Local Audit and Accountability Bill, the Implications for Audit 

Committees, Update of CIPFA’s Guidance on Audit Committees 

Issue 11 

12 Reviewing Internal Audit Quality, New CIPFA Publication, Audit 

Committees Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police, 

Regular Briefing on Current Issues 

Issue 12 

 

Page 57

http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/back-issues-of-audit-committee-update
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/back-issues-of-audit-committee-update
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/back-issues-of-audit-committee-update
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/back-issues-of-audit-committee-update
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/back-issues-of-audit-committee-update
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/back-issues-of-audit-committee-update
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-7
http://www.cipfa.org/Services/Networks/Better-Governance-Forum/Corporate-Governance-Documentation/Audit-Committee-Update-Issue-8
http://www.cipfa.org/Services/Networks/Better-Governance-Forum/Corporate-Governance-Documentation/Audit-committee-update
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-10
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-11
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-12


3 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

Issues from 2014 

13 Reviewing the Audit Plan, Update on the Local Audit and 

Accountability Act, Briefing on Topical Governance Issues 

Issue 13 

14 External Audit Quality and Independence, Government 

Consultation on Local Audit Regulations, CIPFA’s Consultation on 

a New Counter Fraud Code, Regular Briefing on Current Issues 

Issue 14 

15 CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of Fraud and 

Corruption, the Audit Committee Role in Countering Fraud, 

Regular Briefing on Current Developments 

Issue 15 

Issues from 2015 

16 What Makes a Good Audit Committee Chair? Governance 

Developments in 2015 

Issue 16 

17 The Audit Committee Role in Reviewing the Financial 

Statements, Regular Briefing on Current Developments 

Issue 17 

 

Workshops and Training for Audit Committee Members in 
2015/16 from CIPFA 

Introduction to the audit committee 

This event is particularly suitable for those relatively new to the audit committee and it is 

applicable for audit committees in all parts of the public and not for profit sector. It includes 

an overview of the roles, responsibilities and core functions of the committee, together with 

sessions on working with the internal and external auditors. 

23 November 2015, London 

16 March 2016, Birmingham 

13 September 2016, Leeds 

20 September 2016, London 

Development day for local government audit committees 

The workshop is suitable for audit committee members or those working with the audit 

committee in local government. It will cover an update on new developments and legislation 

relevant to the audit committee role. In addition it will feature the revised governance 

framework, internal audit developments and counter fraud. 

3 December 2015, York 

9 December 2015, Birmingham 

20 January 2016, London 

27 January 2016, Manchester 

Page 58

http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-13
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-14
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-15
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-16
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-17
http://www.cipfa.org/training/i/introduction-to-the-audit-committee-20151123-london
http://www.cipfa.org/training/d/development-day-for-local-government-audit-committees-20151203-york
http://www.cipfa.org/training/d/development-day-for-local-government-audit-committees-20151209-birmingham
http://www.cipfa.org/training/d/development-day-for-local-government-audit-committees-20160120-london
http://www.cipfa.org/training/d/development-day-for-local-government-audit-committees-20160127-manchester


4 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

Developments in police audit committees 

These events are suitable for members of the joint audit committees supporting police and 

crime commissioners and chief constables. These events are run in conjunction with CIPFA’s 

Police Network. 

21 September 2016, London 

28 September 2016, York 

Developing the knowledge and skills of the audit committee 

14 September 2016, Leeds 

21 September 2016, London 

CIPFA events information and dates are available on the website: www.cipfa.org/Events. 

In house training and facilitation 

In house audit committee training and guidance tailored to your needs is available.  Options 

include: 

• key roles and responsibilities of the committee 

• effective chairing and support for the committee 

• working with internal and external auditors 

• public sector internal audit standards 

• corporate governance 

• strategic risk management 

• value for money 

• fraud risks and counter fraud arrangements 

• reviewing the financial statements 

• assurance arrangements 

• improving impact and effectiveness. 

For further details contact chris.o’neill@cipfa.org or email diana.melville@cipfa.org or visit 

the CIPFA website where we have a brochure to download outlining the support we have 

available for audit committees. 

  

Page 59

http://www.cipfa.org/Events
mailto:chris.o'neill@cipfa.org
mailto:diana.melville@cipfa.org
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/support-for-the-audit-committee


5 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

Self-assessment and Improving Effectiveness 

Do you know if you are doing a good job as an audit committee? And does it matter? 

Hopefully these are questions that audit committee members can answer positively. It isn’t 

always obvious how an audit committee should be judged. It is easy to tick off ‘compliance’ 

points such as having an approved terms of reference and it is easy to count the number of 

meetings. But the real value of an audit committee comes from the quality of discussion, 

the questions asked, the recommendations for improvement made and the support provided 

to audit, financial management, risk management and governance. Evaluating these areas 

is harder to do, but worthwhile. 

Reflecting back on how you’ve done things and what could be improved is a valuable 

learning activity for everyone, but I think it is of particular merit for the audit committee as 

part of its role in supporting good governance. It also helps the committee to demonstrate 

its openness and improve its accountability by feeding back the results of a review to 

stakeholders. 

A suggested approach for self-assessment 

There are four broad areas that should be considered: 

 whether the committee is meeting recommended practice for committees in its 

sector 

 whether the committee is addressing its areas of responsibility adequately 

 whether the members have acquired the necessary knowledge and skills to be 

effective 

 whether the committee is adding value to the organisation. 

The approach you take to addressing these questions can obviously vary, from a detailed 

checklist to a more qualitative approach. If a checklist is used care should be taken to 

ensure that it gives adequate coverage of all the areas above and doesn’t only look at 

aspects that can be easily checked off. 

Meeting recommended practice 

Links to commonly used self-assessment templates are provided at the end of this article 

but an internet search will provide other examples. If you use a checklist with detailed 

questions about the make-up of the committee, the number of meetings held etc, it is 

important to ensure that the questions are appropriate for the recommended practice in 

your sector. For example, Welsh local authorities must comply with the Local Government 

(Wales) Measure 2011 and ensure that their audit committees include at least one lay 

member. For English, Scottish and Northern Irish committees there is no such requirement, 

although some do opt to do this. The audit committee of a clinical commissioning group 

must include two lay members and a police audit committee must be made up of all 

independent members. So it is important to ensure questions are relevant. 

Addressing your areas of responsibility 

If there are recommended terms of reference for audit committees in your sector then that 

provides the basis for a review of performance. Are your committee’s terms of reference up 

to date and in accordance with that recommended? If they are not, think about the reasons 

for that and consider the following questions: 

 Are there gaps in coverage? 

 Does another committee perform roles which might better lie with the audit 

committee? 

Page 60



6 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

 Is the committee taking on additional responsibilities beyond those recommended? If 

so does this result in a conflict of interest or crowd out audit committee core 

business? 

Look at how the business of the committee aligns to the terms of reference too. Is the 

balance right or do some areas of responsibility consistently fall down to the bottom of the 

agenda? 

Acquiring the right knowledge and skills 

The make-up of the committee and having committee members with relevant knowledge 

and skills is an important contribution to the effectiveness of that committee. The audit 

committee doesn’t need to be made up solely of qualified accountants, auditors and risk 

managers but usually they are welcomed onto a committee! Ensuring a proportionate level 

of knowledge and skills is a reasonable aim for all committees. As part of its guidance to 

local authority and police audit committees CIPFA put together a knowledge and skills 

framework of the core areas that audit committee members should acquire. Putting those 

knowledge and skills into practice is also important. CIPFA is also planning further work to 

support members in this area. 

Adding value 

The final area to consider is the impact that the committee is having in practice and the 

added value it brings. The simplest way to do this is to reflect back on previous meetings 

and recommendations and identify the actions and changes that resulted from the work of 

the committee. Hopefully you will be able to identify a range of things where the committee 

has helped to improve internal control, risk management or governance. Sometimes the 

beneficial impact of the committee can be felt one step removed. For example where the 

audit committee shows strong support for its internal auditors that can help the internal 

auditors to be more effective and have greater impact. The diagram below is from the CIPFA 

publication and shows how audit committees can support improvement across a range of 

organisational objectives. 

 

Source: Audit Committees, Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police (CIPFA, 2013) 

Page 61



7 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

Undertaking the assessment 

So who is best placed to carry out an assessment of the audit committee? An assessment 

led by audit committee members is best to ensure ownership of the outcome and 

recommendations, but I would also recommend that an assessment incorporates input from 

those who interact with the committee on a regular basis such as the head of internal audit, 

head of finance and external auditor. This should help make the assessment as rounded as 

possible. However where the committee is struggling an external facilitator may be able to 

cut through to the core issues and make recommendations for improvement. 

Acting on the results of the assessment 

Once the assessment is completed, agree an action plan for an appropriate period of time 

and build reviews of the plan into the audit committee agendas. Where significant changes 

are needed then wider consultation and agreement may be required to gain support or 

funding for proposed changes. 

If your committee publishes an annual report then I would encourage you to include within 

it a summary of your assessment process and improvement plans for the year. This will help 

stakeholders to recognise that the committee is aiming to do its best to fulfil its 

responsibilities.   

References and resources 

Audit Committees, Practical Guidance for Local Authorities and Police (CIPFA, 2013) 

The publication includes a short (20 questions) good practice self-assessment based on the 

guidance. It also includes a suggested approach for assessing effectiveness and the 

knowledge and skills framework. 

Audit Committee Self-assessment Checklist (National Audit Office, 2012) 

The NAO checklist is based on the Treasury’s Audit Committee Handbook (2007) and is 

aimed at central government audit committees. It includes 89 questions, some of which are 

highlighted as of particular importance. 

Scottish Government Audit Committee Handbook (2008) 

The guidance is for members of audit committees in organisations to which the Scottish 

Public Finance Manual is directly applicable. It includes a self-assessment checklist. 

NHS Audit Committee Handbook (2014) 

The handbook for NHS audit committees also includes checklists on process issues and 

effectiveness. 

 

Diana Melville 

Governance Advisor 

CIPFA Better Governance Forum 

 

  

Page 62

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/publications/a/audit-committees-practical-guidance-for-local-authorities-and-police-2013-edition-pdf
http://www.nao.org.uk/report/audit-committee-self-assessment-checklist-2-2/
http://www.gov.scot/Publications/2008/08/08140346/0
http://www.hfma.org.uk/publications-and-guidance/publicationitem.htm?publicationid=69&catid=2


8 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

Appointment and Procurement of External Auditors 

For local authorities, police, fire authorities, clinical commissioning groups and health trusts 

that currently have external auditors appointed for them by the Audit Commission, the 

provisions of the Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 will soon be coming into force. The 

Audit Commission closed on 31 March 2015 but the current external audit contracts 

continue to be managed by Public Sector Audit Appointments Ltd. This is a company 

established by the Local Government Association and staff previously employed by the Audit 

Commission transferred here to continue their roles. The objective of the Act is to put in 

place new arrangements for the appointment of auditors, with local bodies having the 

opportunity to appoint their own. 

Decisions taken 

The Department of Health has announced that health bodies will adopt the provisions of the 

Act with effect from the 2017/18 financial year. This means that auditors will need to be 

appointed by the end of December 2016 as the Act requires appointments to be in place 

three months before the start of the financial year. 

The Department for Communities and Local Government (DCLG) has decided that existing 

audit contracts for principal authorities (for instance local authorities) can be extended by 

one year so that new auditors will need to be appointed for 2018/19. This means that the 

auditor must be appointed by the end of December 2017. 

Options for appointment 

There are two main options that local bodies have: to undertake a procurement exercise 

using an ‘auditor panel’ (either independently or in conjunction with other bodies), or to opt 

into a sector-led procurement. Regulations have been issued under the Act to give further 

guidance on the implementation of these. Issue 16 of Audit Committee Update included a 

list and links to the regulations.  

Guidance available 

The Department of Health commissioned the Healthcare Financial Management Association 

(HFMA) to write guidance on auditor panels specifically for health bodies. This guidance can 

be accessed on the Department of Health website and is of value for audit committees of 

health bodies.  

The DCLG commissioned CIPFA to write guidance on the appointment of auditor panels. This 

is currently being finalised with the DCLG and will be available soon. The guidance will be 

freely available. Training will also be available in 2016 on establishing auditor panels. 

Steps to take now 

Although decisions do not have to be taken straight away it is important to start the 

evaluation of options soon. Plenty of time is required to plan a procurement and it is also 

necessary to think through the governance implications of auditor panels, their make-up 

and relationship to your existing audit committee.  

Also watch out for any announcements about whether a sector led body will be appointed by 

the secretary of state. This will be crucial for evaluation of this option. 

We will include updates on developments in later issues of this briefing and Better 

Governance Forum events. 

Page 63

http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2014/2/contents
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-16
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/auditor-panels-for-nhs-trusts-and-clinical-groups


9 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

Recent Developments You May Need to Know About 

Legislation and regulations  

Governance Framework for Local Government 

Over the summer CIPFA and Solace consulted on a new governance framework for local 

government, including police, fire and combined authorities. The consultation document can 

be viewed on the CIPFA website. The consultation responses were very positive about the 

change and some helpful suggestions were received for improving the supporting principles 

and guidance to accompany the framework. The consultation responses were considered by 

the working group in October 2015 and the final framework will be published early in 2016. 

To achieve good governance, each local authority should be able to demonstrate that its 

governance is consistent with the principles contained in the framework. The seven core 

principles are: 

A. behaving with integrity, demonstrating strong commitment to ethical values, and 

respecting the rule of law 

B. ensuring openness and comprehensive stakeholder engagement 

C. defining outcomes in terms of sustainable economic, social, and environmental 

benefits 

D. determining the interventions necessary to optimise the achievement of the 

intended outcomes 

E. developing the entity’s capacity, including the capability of its leadership and the 

individuals within it 

F. managing risks and performance through robust internal control and strong 

public financial management 

G. implementing good practices in transparency, reporting, and audit to deliver 

effective accountability. 

 

Cities and Local Government Devolution Bill 

The Cities and Local Government Devolution Bill is currently at the committee stage in the 

House of Commons. The current version of the bill includes provisions for the devolvement 

of additional functions to combined authorities and provision for elected mayors. The bill 

also includes provisions for all combined authorities to appoint their own overview and 

scrutiny committee and audit committee. The bill sets out functions that the audit 

committee should cover, including reviewing the risk management, internal control and 

governance arrangements of the authority. The audit committee should include at least one 

independent person. 

Consultation on police, fire and ambulance collaboration 

The DCLG, Home Office and Department of Health have issued a consultation Enabling 

Closer Working between the Emergency Services. The proposals aim to increase joint 

working between the services and make savings.  

Reports, recommendations and guidance 

The NAO’s Role in Local Audit 

The Local Audit and Accountability Act 2014 introduced a new local audit framework in 

England. Within the new audit framework the NAO prepares and issues the Code of Audit 

Practice, which sets out what local auditors are required to do. In The NAO’s Role in Local 

Audit the NAO sets out what it does, including examples of recent value-for-money work 

focused on local services and contact details. 

Page 64

http://www.cipfa.org/policy-and-guidance/consultations/delivering-good-governance-in-local-government
http://services.parliament.uk/bills/2015-16/citiesandlocalgovernmentdevolution.html
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/enabling-closer-working-between-the-emergency-services
https://www.gov.uk/government/consultations/enabling-closer-working-between-the-emergency-services
http://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-naos-role-in-local-audit/
http://www.nao.org.uk/report/the-naos-role-in-local-audit/


10 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

Managing the Risk of Procurement Fraud 

This guidance has been developed by the LGA and CIPFA Counter Fraud Centre to help 

authorities understand the main areas of risk and appropriate mitigations. It includes useful 

references, ‘red flags’ and a checklist.  

Assessing your counter fraud arrangements 

When preparing their annual governance statements local authorities should review the 

adequacy of their counter fraud arrangements and CIPFA’s guidance to local authority and 

police audit committees is that they should review the assurances underpinning this 

assessment. Following the publication of the CIPFA Code of Practice on Managing the Risk of 

Fraud and Corruption in 2104 there is now an assessment tool available that will enable 

your organisation to assess itself against the counter fraud code. The tool includes reports 

and charts which would be of interest to an audit committee. A benchmarking option is also 

available to allow you to compare your arrangements against your peers. The assessment 

tool has been provided free to all subscribers of the Better Governance Forum. 

A Short Guide to the NAO’s Work on Local Authorities 

The National Audit Office has published A Short Guide to the NAO’s Work on Local 

Authorities. It is designed to provide a quick and accessible overview of how local 

government is funded, the pressures local authorities face, staffing, and major recent and 

future developments. 

Managing Provider Failure 

In Principles Paper: Managing Provider Failure the NAO explores the principles public bodies 

should use to manage provider failure. The report draws on the findings from previous NAO 

reports that have examined examples of failures. Given the extent of outsourcing and 

selection of alternative service delivery models the risks around provider failure are 

important for all parts of the public services. 

Monitoring the quality of external audit 

Following the closure of the Audit Commission, the body established by the LGA, Public 

Sector Auditor Appointments Ltd, took on the responsibility for monitoring the current 

contracts for local audit. The results of their compliance and quality monitoring are 

published in an Annual Regulatory Compliance and Quality Report. Quarterly reports are 

also available on each of the firms holding contracts for local audit.  

Issue 14 of Audit Committee Update describes the audit committee role in relation to 

monitoring the external audit they receive. 

Local Government Auditor’s Report 2015 

This report from the Northern Ireland Audit Office comments on a range of topics arising 

from audit work in local government bodies during the 2013/14 financial year. The report 

includes comments on strengthening the role of the audit committee, including 

recommendations that they should be constituted as a full committee and include 

independent members to strengthen independence and widen the range of specialist skills. 

CIPFA Fraud and Corruption Tracker 

Earlier in 2015 CIPFA undertook a survey of levels of fraud and corruption detected across 

the public sector in the 2014/15 financial year. The results of this survey will be published in 

the next few weeks and will provide a valuable insight into current levels of detected fraud 

and corruption.  

  

Page 65

http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/counter-fraud-resources/local-government-association
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/code-of-practice
http://www.cipfa.org/services/counter-fraud-centre/code-of-practice
http://www.nao.org.uk/report/a-short-guide-to-the-naos-work-on-local-authorities/
http://www.nao.org.uk/report/a-short-guide-to-the-naos-work-on-local-authorities/
http://www.nao.org.uk/report/principles-paper-managing-provider-failure/
http://www.psaa.co.uk/audit-quality/principal-audits/
http://www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum/corporate-governance-documentation/audit-committee-update-issue-14
http://www.niauditoffice.gov.uk/index/publications/recent_reports/local_government_auditor_s_report_2015.htm


11 

www.cipfa.org/services/networks/better-governance-forum 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Published by: 

CIPFA \ THE CHARTERED INSTITUTE OF PUBLIC FINANCE AND ACCOUNTANCY 

77 Mansell Street, London E1 8AN 

020 7543 5600 \ www.cipfa.org 

© 2015 CIPFA 

No responsibility for loss occasioned to any person acting or refraining from action as a result of any material in this 
publication can be accepted by the authors or publisher. 

While every care has been taken in the preparation of this publication, it may contain errors for which the publisher and 
authors cannot be held responsible.  

Apart from any fair dealing for the purposes of research or private study, or criticism or review, as permitted under the 
Copyright, Designs and Patents Act 1988, this publication may be reproduced, stored or transmitted, in any form or by any 
means, only with the prior permission in writing of the publishers, or in the case of reprographic reproduction in 
accordance with the terms of licences issued by the Copyright Licensing Agency Ltd. Enquiries concerning reproduction 
outside those terms should be sent to the publishers at the above mentioned address. 

 

Page 66

http://www.cipfa.org/


SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Julie Kennealy - Executive Director Commercialisation 

To: Governance and Audit Committee – 3 December 2015

(Author: Sean Howsam – Finance Manager Treasury (Compass Point Business 
Services (CPBS))

Subject: Mid Term Treasury Report 2015/16 

Purpose: To provide an update of the treasury management position of the Council as 
at 30 September 2015.

Recommendation: 

1) That Governance and Audit Committee note the report and treasury activity as detailed in 
Appendix A and make any comments for consideration by Council when they consider the 
minutes of this meeting at their meeting on 20 January 2016.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on 
Treasury Management 2011 was adopted by this Council on 8 March 2012.

The primary requirements of the Code are as follows: 

 Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy Statement which sets 
out the policies and objectives of the Council’s treasury management activities;

 Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices which set out the 
manner in which the Council will seek to achieve those policies and objectives;

 Receipt by the full council of an annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement - 
including the Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue Provision Policy - 
for the year ahead, a Mid-year Review Report and an Annual Report (stewardship 
report) covering activities during the previous year;

 Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing and monitoring treasury 
management policies and practices and for the execution and administration of 
treasury management decisions;

 Delegation by the Council of the role of scrutiny of treasury management strategy and 
policies to a specific named body.  For this Council the delegated body is the 
Governance and Audit Committee.

1.2      Attached at Appendix A is the 2015-16 Mid-Year Review Report for scrutiny to enable 
Governance and Audit to make any comments for consideration by Council when they 
consider the minutes of this meeting at their meeting on 20 January 2016.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 As the report is an update report there are no alternative options presented. 

Page 67

Agenda Item 8.



3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 To comply with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code 
of Practice on Treasury Management 2011.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The report provides Members with a summary of the economy, the effect it has had on 
financial markets and the treasury activity during 2015-16. The report requires scrutiny prior 
to the minutes being submitting to Council for approval.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Constitution & Legal

5.1.1 This Council is required to produce a mid-term treasury report to comply with the Chartered 
Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury 
Management 2011. The report has no implications which would affect the constitution and 
does not therefore warrant a further change in the constitution.

5.1.2 Plans and strategies for control of the Council’s borrowing, investments, capital expenditure 
and minimum revenue provision form part of the Council’s policy framework and are 
therefore a non-executive (Council) function under the Council’s Constitution.

5.2 Financial 
5.2.1 This mid-term report provides a review of the treasury activity for the first six month of the 

2015/16 financial year.

5.2.2 Investment income to the end of September 2015 is £106k with an investment return of 
0.685% on average balances invested of £30m.

5.2.3 Out turn forecast for the year is £163k investment income from an investment return of 
0.685% on average balances of £24m together with £37k of investment income in respect 
of £5m average working capital balances generated through the year. 

5.3 Risk Management 

5.3.1 The Council’s priority is the security of its investments.

5.4 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

5.4.1 The report is being submitted for pre decision scrutiny prior to the minutes of this meeting 
being submitted to Council.

5 5.4.2 Capita Asset Services have been consulted in relation to the compilation of this report.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 None.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

CPBS – Compass Point Business Services
CIPFA – Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy

Page 68



Background papers:-

a)  SHDC Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy 
Statement and Annual Investment Strategy 2015/16

Lead Contact Officer
Sean Howsam – Finance Manager Treasury (CPBS)
Telephone Number:  01507 613248
Email:  sean.howsam@cpbs.com

Key Decision: No 

Exempt Decision: No 

This report refers to a Mandatory Service 

Appendices attached to this report: 

Appendix A – Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy Mid-
Year Review Report 2015/16

Page 69



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX A

Treasury Management Strategy Statement and 
Annual Investment Strategy
Mid-year Review Report 2015-16

South Holland District Council

Treasury Management Strategy Statement
 and Annual Investment Strategy

Mid Year Review Report 2015/16

Page 71



APPENDIX A

 

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Council operates a balanced budget, which broadly means cash raised during the year 
will meet its cash expenditure.  Part of the treasury management operations ensure this 
cash flow is adequately planned, with surplus monies being invested in low risk 
counterparties, providing adequate liquidity initially before considering maximising 
investment return.

1.2  The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the 
Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the 
Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure the Council can meet its 
capital spending obligations.  This management of longer term cash may involve arranging 
long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses, and on occasion any 
debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives.

1.3 Accordingly, treasury management is defined as:

“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money 
market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with 
those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks.”

1.4 The Treasury Management function is administered by Compass Point Business Services 
on behalf of the Council.

1.5 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on 
Treasury Management 2011 was adopted by this Council on 8 March 2012.

The primary requirements of the Code are as follows: 

 Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy Statement which sets 
out the policies and objectives of the Council’s treasury management activities;

 Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices which set out the 
manner in which the Council will seek to achieve those policies and objectives;

 Receipt by the full council of an annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement - 
including the Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue Provision Policy - for 
the year ahead, a Mid-Year Review Report and an Annual Report (stewardship 
report) covering activities during the previous year;

 Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing and monitoring treasury 
management policies and practices and for the execution and administration of 
treasury management decisions;

 Delegation by the Council of the role of scrutiny of treasury management strategy and 
policies to a specific named body.  For this Council the delegated body is the 
Governance and Audit Committee.

2.0 SUMMARY

2.1 The mid year report has been prepared in compliance with CIPFA’s Code of Practice on 
Treasury Management, and covers the following:

Page 72



APPENDIX A

 An economic update for the 2015/16 financial year to 30th September 2015;
 A review of the Treasury Management Strategy Statement and Annual Investment 

Strategy;
 The Council’s capital expenditure (prudential indicators);
 A review of the Council’s investment portfolio for 2015/16;
 A review of the Council’s borrowing strategy for 2015/16;
 A review of any debt rescheduling undertaken during 2015/16;
 A review of compliance with Treasury and Prudential Limits for 2015/16.

2.2 There are no key changes to the Treasury or Capital Strategy.

3.0 ECONOMIC UPDATE

3.1 Economic performance to date and outlook.
U.K.
UK Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth rates in 2013 of 2.2% and 2.9% in 2014 were the 
strongest growth rates of any G7 country; the 2014 growth rate was also the strongest UK rate 
since 2006 and the 2015 growth rate is likely to be a leading rate in the G7 again, possibly being 
equal to that of the US. However, quarter 1 of 2015 was weak at +0.4% (+2.9% y/y) though 
there was a rebound in quarter 2 to +0.7% (+2.4% y/y). Growth is expected to weaken to about 
+0.5% in quarter 3 as the economy faces headwinds for exporters from the appreciation of 
Sterling against the Euro and weak growth in the European Union (EU), China and emerging 
markets, plus the dampening effect of the Government’s continuing austerity programme, 
although the pace of reductions was eased in the May Budget. Despite these headwinds, the 
Bank of England August Inflation Report had included a forecast for growth to remain around 
2.4 – 2.8% over the next three years, driven mainly by strong consumer demand as the 
squeeze on the disposable incomes of consumers has been reversed by a recovery in wage 
inflation at the same time that Consumer Price Index (CPI) inflation has fallen to, or near to, zero 
over the last quarter.  Investment expenditure is also expected to support growth. However, 
since the report was issued, the Purchasing Manager’s Index, (PMI), for services on 5 October 
would indicate a further decline in the growth rate to only +0.3% in Q4, which would be the 
lowest rate since the end of 2012.  In addition, worldwide economic statistics and UK consumer 
and business confidence have distinctly weakened so it would therefore not be a surprise if the 
next Inflation Report in November were to cut those forecasts in August.
The August Bank of England Inflation Report forecast was notably subdued in respect of 
inflation which was forecast to barely get back up to the 2% target within the 2-3 year time 
horizon. However, with the price of oil taking a fresh downward direction and Iran expected to 
soon re-join the world oil market after the impending lifting of sanctions, there could be several 
more months of low inflation still to come, especially as world commodity prices have generally 
been depressed by the Chinese economic downturn.  
There are therefore considerable risks around whether inflation will rise in the near future as 
strongly as had previously been expected; this will make it more difficult for the central banks of 
both the US and the UK to raise rates as soon as  was being forecast until recently, especially 
given the recent major concerns around the slowdown in Chinese growth, the knock on impact 
on the earnings of emerging countries from falling oil and commodity prices, and the volatility we 
have seen in equity and bond markets in 2015 so far, which could potentially spill over to impact 
the real economies rather than just financial markets.  

Page 73



APPENDIX A

U.S.A

The American economy made a strong comeback after a weak first quarter’s growth at 
+0.6% (annualised), to grow by no less than 3.9% in quarter 2 of 2015. While there had 
been confident expectations during the summer that the Federal Reserve (Fed.) could start 
increasing rates at its meeting on 17 September, or if not by the end of 2015, the recent 
downbeat news about Chinese and Japanese growth and the knock on impact on emerging 
countries that are major suppliers of commodities, was cited as the main reason for the 
Fed’s decision to pull back from making that start.  The nonfarm payrolls figures for 
September and revised August, issued on 2 October, were disappointingly weak and 
confirmed concerns that US growth is likely to weaken.  This has pushed back expectations 
of a first rate increase from 2015 into 2016. 

Eurozone

In the Eurozone, the European Central Bank (ECB) fired its big bazooka in January 2015 in 
unleashing a massive €1.1 trillion programme of quantitative easing (QE) to buy up high 
credit quality government and other debt of selected Eurozone (EZ) countries. This 
programme of €60bn of monthly purchases started in March 2015 and it is intended to run 
initially to September 2016.  This already appears to have had a positive effect in helping a 
recovery in consumer and business confidence and a start to a significant improvement in 
economic growth.  GDP growth rose to 0.5% in quarter 1 2015 (1.0% y/y) but came in at 
+0.4% (+1.5% y/y) in quarter 2 and looks as if it may maintain this pace in quarter 3.  
However, the recent downbeat Chinese and Japanese news has raised questions as to 
whether the ECB will need to boost its QE programme if it is to succeed in significantly 
improving growth in the EZ and getting inflation up from the current level of around zero to 
its target of 2%. 

3.2 Interest rate forecast. 

The Council’s treasury advisor, Capita Asset Services, has provided the following forecast:

Capita Asset Services undertook its last review of interest rate forecasts on 11 August shortly 
after the quarterly Bank of England Inflation Report. Later in August, fears around the slowdown 
in China and Japan caused major volatility in equities and bonds and sparked a flight from 
equities into safe havens like gilts and so caused Public Works Loans Board (PWLB) rates to fall 
below the above forecasts for quarter 4 2015.  However, there is much volatility in rates as news 
ebbs and flows in negative or positive ways and news in September in respect of Volkswagen, 
and other corporates, has compounded downward pressure on equity prices. This latest 
forecast includes a first increase in Bank Rate in quarter 2 of 2016. 

Page 74



APPENDIX A

Despite market turbulence since late August causing a sharp downturn in PWLB rates, the 
overall trend in the longer term will be for gilt yields and PWLB rates to rise when economic 
recovery is firmly established accompanied by rising inflation and consequent increases in Bank 
Rate, and the eventual unwinding of QE. Increasing investor confidence in eventual world 
economic recovery is also likely to compound this effect as recovery will encourage investors to 
switch from bonds to equities.  

The overall balance of risks to economic recovery in the UK is currently evenly balanced. Only 
time will tell just how long this current period of strong economic growth will last; it also remains 
exposed to vulnerabilities in a number of key areas.
The disappointing US nonfarm payrolls figures and UK PMI services figures at the beginning of 
October have served to reinforce a trend of increasing concerns that growth is likely to be 
significantly weaker than had previously been expected.  This, therefore, has markedly 
increased concerns, both in the US and UK, that growth is only being achieved by monetary 
policy being highly aggressive with central rates at near zero and huge QE in place.  In turn, this 
is also causing an increasing debate as to how realistic it will be for central banks to start on 
reversing such aggressive monetary policy until such time as strong growth rates are more 
firmly established and confidence increases that inflation is going to get back to around 2% 
within a 2-3 year time horizon.  Market expectations in October for the first Bank Rate increase 
have therefore shifted back sharply into the second half of 2016.

Downside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates currently include: 
 Geopolitical risks in Eastern Europe, the Middle East and Asia, increasing safe haven 

flows.
 UK economic growth turns significantly weaker than we currently anticipate.
 Weak growth or recession in the UK’s main trading partners - the EU, US and China.
 A resurgence of the Eurozone sovereign debt crisis.
 Recapitalisation of European banks requiring more government financial support.
 Emerging country economies, currencies and corporates destabilised by falling commodity 

prices and / or the start of Fed. rate increases, causing a flight to safe havens.

The potential for upside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates, especially 
for longer term PWLB rates include:

 Uncertainty around the risk of a UK exit from the EU.
 The ECB severely disappointing financial markets with a programme of asset purchases 

which proves insufficient to significantly stimulate growth in the EZ.
 The commencement by the US Federal Reserve of increases in the Fed. funds rate 

causing a fundamental reassessment by investors of the relative risks of holding bonds as 
opposed to equities and leading to a major flight from bonds to equities.

 UK inflation returning to significantly higher levels than in the wider EU and US, causing an 
increase in the inflation premium inherent to gilt yields.

4.0 TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY STATEMENT AND ANNUAL INVESTMENT 
STRATEGY

4.1 The Treasury Management Strategy Statement (TMSS) for 2015/16 was approved by 
Council on 25th February 2015.

There are no policy changes to the TMSS, the details in this report update the position in 
the light of the updated economic position and budgetary changes already approved.

Page 75



APPENDIX A

5.0 THE COUNCIL’S CAPITAL POSITION (PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS) 
This part of the report is structured to update:

 The Council’s capital expenditure plans;
 How these plans are being financed;
 The impact of the changes in the capital expenditure plans on the prudential 

indicators and the underlying need to borrow; and
 Compliance with the limits in place for borrowing activity.

5.1 Prudential Indicator for Capital Expenditure.
This table shows the revised estimates for capital expenditure and the changes since the 
capital programme was agreed at the Budget. 

Capital Expenditure 2015-16
Original
Programme
£’000

Position
As At
30-09-15
£’000

2015-16
Latest 
Approved
£’000

General Fund 2,156 160 2,228
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) 7,256 1,731 7,500
Total 9,412 1,891 9,728

5.2 Changes to the Financing of the Capital Programme.  
The table below draws together the main strategy elements of the capital expenditure plans 
(above), highlighting the original supported and unsupported elements of the capital 
programme, and the expected financing arrangements.  The programme is fully funded 
without the need for external borrowing which means there are no future repayment 
implications (Minimum Revenue Provision). 

The HRA capital programme is currently being examined and the estimate shown below for 
2015-16 is likely to change when revised policies are agreed and authorised by council.

Capital Expenditure 2015-16
Original

Programme
£’000

Position
As At

30-09-15
£’000

2015-16
Latest 

Approved
£’000

General Fund 2,156 160 2,228
HRA 7,256 1,731 7,500
Total spend 9,412 1,891 9,728
Financed by:
Capital receipts 550 122 697
Capital grants and Contributions 1,031 147 990
Direct Revenue Funding/Use of 
Reserves 7,831 1,622 8,041
Total financing 9,412 1,891 9,728
Borrowing need 0 0 0

Page 76



APPENDIX A

5.3 Changes to the Prudential Indicators for the Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), External 
Debt and the Operational Boundary.
The following table shows the CFR, which is the underlying external need to incur 
borrowing for a capital purpose. Actions are in progress, which are likely to change / reduce 
the CFR position by the end of the financial year for Housing and non housing activities.
It also shows the expected debt position over the period. This is termed the Operational 
Boundary.

5.4 Limits to Borrowing Activity

The first key control over the treasury activity is a prudential indicator to ensure that over 
the medium term, net borrowing (borrowings less investments) will only be for a capital 
purpose.  Gross external borrowing should not, except in the short term, exceed the total of 
CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR for 2015/16 and next 
two financial years.  This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years.  
The Council has approved a policy for borrowing in advance of need which will be adhered 
to if this proves prudent.

The Executive Director Commercialisation (Section 151 Officer) reports that no difficulties 
are envisaged for the current or future years in complying with this prudential indicator.  
A further prudential indicator controls the overall level of borrowing.  This is the Authorised 
Limit which represents the limit beyond which borrowing is prohibited, and needs to be set 
and revised by Members.  It reflects the level of borrowing which, while not desired, could 
be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the longer term.  It is the expected 

2015-16
Original Estimate

For Year End
£’000

Position
As At

30/09/15
£’000

CFR – non housing 1,983 1,907
CFR – housing 69,165 69,555
Total CFR 71,148 71,462

Net movement in CFR (500) (355)

Borrowing 86,456 67,456
Other long term liabilities 1,000 1,000
Total debt  31 March 87,456 68,456

2015-16
Original 
Estimate
For Year End
£’000

Position
As At
30/09/15

£’000

2015-16
Revised
Estimate
For Year End
£’000

Gross borrowing 67,469 67,456 67,456
Less investments (16,673) (31,342) (23,137)
Net borrowing 50,796 36,114 44,319
CFR (year end position) 71,148 71,462 TBA

Page 77



APPENDIX A

maximum borrowing need with some headroom for unexpected movements. This is the 
statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local Government Act 2003. 

6.0 INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO 2015/16

6.1 In accordance with the Code, it is the Council’s priority to ensure security of capital and 
liquidity, and to obtain an appropriate level of return which is consistent with the Council’s 
risk policy.  As set out in Section 3, it is a very difficult investment market in terms of 
earning the level of interest rates commonly seen in previous decades as rates are very low 
and in line with the 0.5% Bank Rate.  The continuing potential for a re-emergence of a 
Eurozone sovereign debt crisis, and its impact on banks, prompts a low risk and short term 
strategy.  Given this risk environment, investment returns are likely to remain low. 
The Council held  £31.342m of investments as at 30 September 2015 (£23.477m as at 31 
March 2015) and the investment portfolio yield for the first six months of the year is 0.685% 
against a benchmark of 0.43% (average 3 month LIBID).

Deposits held as at 30th September 2015 were as follows:

The Section 151 Officer confirms that the approved limits within the Annual Investment 
Strategy were not breached during the first six months of 2015/16.

The Council’s budgeted investment return for 2015/16 is £154,800, and performance for 
the year to date is £106,320. 

The Council monitors risk of its investment portfolio against the Capita Asset Services 
counterparty risk matrix.  This matrix gives recommended maximum investment durations 
for each financial institution based on the ratings allocated by the major credit rating 
agency’s and also takes into account credit default swap prices.

Authorised limit for external 
debt

2015-16
Original
Estimate
£’000

Position
As At
30/09/15
£’000

2015-16
Revised
Estimate
£’000

Borrowing 89,456 89,456 89,456
Other long term liabilities   1,000   1,000   1,000
Total 90,456 90,456 90,456

Institution As at 
31-03-15
£’000

As at
30-09-15
£’000

Lloyds Bank PLC (Current Account) 388 240
NatWest Bank (Instant Access) 2 2
Svenska Handelsbanken Bank (Instant Access) 4,987 4,950
CCLA Money Market Fund (Instant Access) 4,100 1,450
Nationwide BS 5,000 3,000
Lloyds Bank PLC 4,500 4,500
Royal Bank of Scotland 4,500 4,500
Barclays Bank 0 4,200
Standard Chartered Bank 0 5,000
Goldman Sachs International 0 3,500
TOTAL 23,477 31,342

Page 78



APPENDIX A

6.2 Investment Counterparty criteria
The current investment counterparty criteria selection approved in the TMSS is meeting the 
requirement of the treasury management function.  

7.0 BORROWING

7.1 The Council’s capital financing requirement (CFR) for 2015/16 is £71.462m.  The CFR 
denotes the Council’s underlying need to borrow for capital purposes.  If the CFR is positive 
the Council may borrow from the PWLB or the market (external borrowing) or from internal 
balances on a temporary basis (internal borrowing).  The balance of external and internal 
borrowing is generally driven by market conditions.  The table at paragraph 5.4 shows the 
Council has borrowings of £67.456m in respect of the Housing Revenue Account self-
financing settlement with no further requirements forecast at present. 

As outlined below, the general trend has been an increase in interest rates during the first 
quarter but then a fall during the second quarter. 

It is anticipated that further borrowing will not be undertaken during this financial year.

The graph below shows the movement in PWLB rates for the first six months of the year to 
30th September 2015:

8.0 DEBT RESCHEDULING

8.1 The majority of the Councils debt was taken out in March 2012 as part of the HRA 
Financing Reforms. No major debt rescheduling opportunities have arisen in the year and 
none are planned to be available during the period of the latest Medium Term Financial 
Plan 2016/17 to 2019/20. 

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Julie Kennealy - Executive Director Commercialisation

To: Governance and Audit Committee - 3 December 2015

(Author: Sean Howsam - Finance Manager Treasury (CPBS))

Subject: Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision 
Policy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy 2016/17.

Purpose: To provide pre-decision scrutiny to the strategy being proposed.

Recommendation: 

1) That the Governance and Audit Committee scrutinise the Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy and Annual Investment Strategy 2016/17 
(Appendix A) and make any comments and suggestions to be considered by Cabinet when 
they consider these documents at their meeting on 16 February 2016.
 

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Council operates a balanced budget, which broadly means cash raised during the year 
will meet its cash expenditure. Part of the treasury management operation is to ensure that 
this cash flow is adequately planned with cash being available when it is needed.  Surplus 
monies are invested in low risk counterparties or instruments commensurate with the 
Council’s low risk policy, providing adequate liquidity initially before considering investment 
return.

1.2 The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the 
Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing need of the 
Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure that the Council can meet 
its capital spending obligations.  This management of longer term cash may involve 
arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow surpluses.  On occasion 
any debt previously drawn may be restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives.

1.3 CIPFA defines treasury management as:

“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, money 
market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks associated with 
those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks. ”

1.4 The Council’s treasury function is undertaken by Compass Point Business Services (East 
Coast) Ltd (CPBS) on behalf of the Council.

1.5 The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on 
Treasury Management 2011 was adopted by this Council on 8 March 2012.

The primary requirements of the Code are as follows:

 Creation and maintenance of a Treasury Management Policy statement which sets 
out the policies and objectives of the Council’s treasury management activities;

Page 81

Agenda Item 9.



 Creation and maintenance of Treasury Management Practices which set out the 
manner in which the Council will seek to achieve those policies and objectives;

 Receipt by the full council of an annual Treasury Management Strategy Statement – 
including the Annual Investment Strategy and Minimum Revenue Provision Policy – 
for the year ahead, a Mid-year review Report and an Annual Report (stewardship 
report) covering activities during the previous year;

 Delegation by the Council of responsibilities for implementing and monitoring 
treasury policies and practices and for the execution and administration of treasury 
management decisions;

1.6 Delegation by the Council of the role of scrutiny of treasury management strategy and 
policies to a specific named body.  For this Council the delegated body is the Governance 
and Audit Committee.

2.0 SUMMARY

2.1 The Act requires the Council to set out its Treasury Management Strategy Statement, 
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy and Annual Investment Strategy for the forthcoming 
year.  These outline the Council’s strategy for borrowing and its policies for managing its 
investments and for giving priority to the security and liquidity of those investments. Our 
strategy statements for 2016/17 are attached at Appendix A. The strategy statements 
cover:

 reporting requirements
 capital prudential indicators 2015/16 to 2018/9
 the borrowing requirement
 the MRP policy
 the use of the Council’s resources and the investment position
 Prudential and Treasury Indicators
 treasury limits in force which will limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council
 prospects for interest rates
 the borrowing strategy
 policy on borrowing in advance of need
 debt rescheduling
 the investment policy
 creditworthiness policy
 country limits
 investment strategy

2.2 The strategy document presented to Governance and Audit for scrutiny is currently at draft 
stage. This is because the future Capital Programme has yet to be finalised and approved 
by Council. Once this is known the tables within the strategy document shown at Appendix 
A will be submitted to Council for approval before the commencement of the
2016/17 financial year.

2.3 The Council has recently created a Housing Company (Welland Homes) which may involve 
the Council taking on additional borrowing and providing a loan to the Housing Company. 
Once further information becomes available it may result in amendments to the draft 
strategy attached.

2.4 The Council’s strategy statement has been prepared in accordance with the 2011 Code 
and will require approval by Full Council. In addition there will be monitoring reports and 

Page 82



regular review by Councillors in both executive and scrutiny functions. The aim of these 
reporting arrangements is to ensure that those with ultimate responsibility for the treasury 
management function appreciate fully the implications of treasury management policies and 
activities, and that those implementing policies and executing transactions have properly 
fulfilled their responsibilities with regard to delegation and reporting. 

3.0 OPTIONS

3.1       Members have the option of making comments to Cabinet in respect of the proposed 
strategy or alternatively making no comments.

4.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

4.1 To comply with the Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code 
of Practice on Treasury Management 2011.

5.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

5.1       The report provides Governance and Audit Members with the proposed Treasury 
Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement and 
Annual Investment Strategy for 2016/17. The report requires scrutiny prior to submitting to 
Council for approval.

6.0 IMPLICATIONS

6.1       Constitution & Legal

6.1.1 This Council is required to produce a Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum 
Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy before the 
commencement of each financial year to comply with the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy’s (CIPFA) Code of Practice on Treasury Management 2011. The 
report has no implications which would affect the constitution and does not therefore 
warrant a further change in the constitution.

6.1.2 Plans and strategies for control of the Council’s borrowing, investments, capital expenditure 
and minimum revenue provision form part of the Council’s policy framework and are 
therefore a non-executive (Council) function under the Council’s Constitution.

6.2       Corporate Priorities

6.2.1 The Treasury Management Strategy (incorporating the Annual Investment Strategy) aims to 
achieve the optimum performance from the Council’s cash flow, debt and investment 
operations and effectively control the associated risks. This will help to finance the 
corporate priorities of the Council.

6.3       Financial 

6.3.1 Adoption of the proposed Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue 
Provision Policy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy will ensure sound financial 
controls associated with the management of the authority’s investments and cash flows, its 
banking, money market and capital market transactions and safeguard these assets.

6.4       Risk Management 

6.4.1    The Strategy will put in place measures for the effective control of the risks associated with 

Page 83



Treasury Management and the pursuit of optimum performance consistent with those risks. 
The Council’s priority is the security of its investments.

6.5 Stakeholders / Consultation / Timescales

6.5.1 This report is being submitted for pre decision scrutiny prior to submission to Cabinet and
Council.

6.5.2 Capita Asset Services have been consulted in relation to the compilation of this report.

7.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

7.1       None.

8.0 ACRONYMS 

CIPFA – Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy
CPBS – Compass Point Business Services
MRP – Minimum Revenue Provision
VRP – Voluntary Revenue Provision
DCLG – Communities and Local Government
HRA – Housing Revenue Account
PFI – Public Finance Initiative
CFR – Capital Financing Requirement
PWLB – Public Works Loan Board
CPI – Consumer Price Index
GDP – Gross Domestic Product
CDS – Credit Default Swap
MPC – Monetary Policy Committee
EZ – Eurozone
ECB – European Central Bank
QE – Quantitative Easing (purchase of Sovereign Debt)

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Sean Howsam – Finance Manager Treasury (CPBS)
Telephone Number: 01507 613248
Email: Sean.howsam@cpbs.com

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

This report refers to a Mandatory Service 

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue

Provision Policy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy
2016/17.

Page 84

%5CBCF01Democratic%20ServicesCommitteeCommitteeReport%20Guide2014THE%20COMMITTEE%20REPORT%20GUIDE_JUNE%202014.doc


APPENDIX A

Treasury Management Strategy Statement

Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual 
Investment Strategy

South Holland District Council

2016/17

Page 85



INDEX

1 INTRODUCTION  3

1.1 Background  3
1.2 Reporting requirements  3
1.3 Treasury Management Strategy for 2016/17  4
1.4 Training  5
1.5 Treasury management consultants  5

2 THE CAPITAL PRUDENTIAL INDICATORS 2016/17 – 2018/19  5

2.1 Capital expenditure  5
2.2 The Council’s borrowing need (the Capital Financing

Requirement)  6
2.3 Minimum revenue provision policy statement  6
2.4 Core funds and expected investment balances  7
2.5 Affordability prudential indicators  7
2.6 Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream  7
2.7 Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on

council tax  7
2.8 Estimates of the incremental impact of capital investment

decisions on housing rent levels  8
2.9 HRA ratios  8

3 BORROWING  8

3.1 Current portfolio position  8
3.2 Treasury Indicators: limits to borrowing activity  9
3.3 Prospects for interest rates 10
3.4 Borrowing strategy 12
3.5 Policy on borrowing in advance of need 14
3.6 Debt rescheduling 14
3.7 Municipal Bonds Agency 14

4 ANNUAL INVESTMENT STRATEGY 15

4.1 Introduction – Changes to Credit rating methodology 15
4.2 Investment policy 16
4.3 Creditworthiness policy 17
4.4 Country limits 18
4.5 Investment strategy 18
4.6 Investment risk benchmarking 19
4.7 End of year investment report 19

5 APPENDICES 20

1 Interest Rate Forecasts 2016 – 2019 21
2 Economic Background 22
3 Treasury Management Practice (TMP1) – Credit and

Counterparty Risk Management 27
4 Approved Countries for Investments 31
5 Treasury Management Scheme of Delegation 32
6 The Treasury Management Role of the Section 151 Officer 33

Page 86



1.  Introduction

1.1 Background

The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that 
cash raised during the year will meet cash expenditure.  Part of the treasury 
management operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned, with 
cash being available when it is needed.  Surplus monies are invested in low risk 
counterparties or instruments commensurate with the Council’s low risk policy, 
providing adequate liquidity initially before considering investment return.

The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of 
the Council’s capital plans.  These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing 
need of the Council, essentially the longer term cash flow planning to ensure that 
the Council can meet its capital spending obligations.  This management of longer 
term cash may involve arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term 
cash flow surpluses.  On occasion any debt previously drawn may be restructured 
to meet Council risk or cost objectives. 

CIPFA defines treasury management as:

“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its banking, 
money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of the risks 
associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum performance 
consistent with those risks. ”

The Council’s treasury function is undertaken by Compass Point Business 
Services (East Coast) Ltd (CPBS) on behalf of the Council. CPBS is 
responsible for:

 Production of the draft annual treasury management strategy 
 Production of regular treasury management policy reports
 Production of treasury management practices
 Production of budget and budget variations relating to the treasury 

management function
 Production of management information reports
 Provision of adequate treasury management resources and skills, and 

effective division of responsibilities within the treasury management 
function

 Arrangement of the appointment of external service providers.

1.2 Reporting requirements

The Council is required to receive and approve, as a minimum, three main 
reports each year, which incorporate a variety of policies, estimates and 
actuals.  

Page 87



Prudential and Treasury Indicators and Treasury Strategy (this report) - 
The first, and most important report covers:

 the capital plans (including prudential indicators);
 a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy (how residual capital 

expenditure is charged to revenue over time);
 the treasury management strategy (how the investments and borrowings 

are to be organised) including treasury indicators; and 
 an investment strategy (the parameters on how investments are to be 

managed).

A Mid Year Treasury Management Report – This will update members with 
the progress of the capital position, amending prudential indicators as 
necessary, and whether any policies require revision.

An Annual Treasury Report – This provides details of a selection of actual 
prudential and treasury indicators and actual treasury operations compared to 
the estimates within the strategy.

Scrutiny
The above reports are required to be adequately scrutinised before being 
recommended to the Council.  This role is undertaken by the Governance and 
Audit Committee.

1.3 Treasury Management Strategy for 2016/17

The strategy for 2016/17 covers two main areas:

Capital Issues
 the capital plans and the prudential indicators;
 the minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy.

Treasury Management Issues
 the current treasury position;
 treasury indicators which will limit the treasury risk and activities of the 

Council;
 prospects for interest rates;
 the borrowing strategy;
 policy on borrowing in advance of need;
 debt rescheduling;
 the investment strategy;
 creditworthiness policy; and
 policy on use of external service providers.

These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the 
CIPFA Prudential Code, the Communities and Local Government (CLG) MRP 
Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management Code and the CLG Investment 
Guidance.

Page 88



1.4 Training

The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer to ensure that members with 
responsibility for treasury management receive adequate training in treasury 
management.  This especially applies to members responsible for scrutiny.  
Training is arranged as required.
  
The training needs of CPBS treasury management officers are periodically 
reviewed. 

1.5 Treasury management consultants

CPBS uses Capita Asset Services as external treasury management advisors for 
the Council.

The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions 
remains with the Council at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not 
placed upon external service providers. 

It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury 
management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and 
resources. The Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the 
methods by which their value will be assessed are properly agreed and 
documented, and subjected to regular review. 

2. The Capital Prudential Indicators 2016/17 – 2018/19
The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury 
management activity.  The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected 
in prudential indicators, which are designed to assist members’ overview and 
confirm capital expenditure plans.

2.1 Capital expenditure

This prudential indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure 
plans, both those agreed previously, and those forming part of this budget 
cycle.  Members approve capital expenditure forecasts as part of the annual 
Budget report.
Performance reports for General Fund expenditure and the Housing Revenue 
Account works to stock are currently being reviewed and will be presented at 
the meeting for discussion.
All programmes are assumed to be financed from existing funds and no new 
borrowing is anticipated in year or during the period of the Medium Term 
Financial Plan 2016/17 to 2019/20.
Other long term liabilities - the above financing need excludes other long term 
liabilities, such as Private Financing Initiative (PFI) and leasing arrangements 
which already include borrowing instruments.  

Page 89



2.2 The Council’s borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement)
The second prudential indicator is the Council’s Capital Financing 
Requirement (CFR).  The CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital 
expenditure which has not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital 
resources.  It is essentially a measure of the Council’s underlying borrowing 
need.  Any capital expenditure above, which has not immediately been paid 
for, will increase the CFR. 
The CFR does not increase indefinitely, as the MRP is a statutory annual 
revenue charge which broadly reduces the borrowing need in line with each 
assets life.
The CFR includes any other long term liabilities (e.g. PFI schemes, finance 
leases).  Whilst these increase the CFR, and therefore the Council’s 
borrowing requirement, these types of scheme include a borrowing facility and 
so the Council is not required to separately borrow for these schemes.  The 
Council currently has no such schemes within the CFR at present.
As part of the formal governance process, the Council approves the CFR 
projections which are currently being reworked and will be presented to the 
meeting for discussion.

2.3 Minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy statement
The Council is required to pay off an element of the accumulated General 
Fund capital spend each year (the CFR) through a revenue charge (the 
minimum revenue provision - MRP), although it is also allowed to undertake 
additional voluntary payments if required (voluntary revenue provision - VRP).  
CLG Regulations have been issued which require the full Council to approve 
an MRP Statement in advance of each year.  A variety of options are 
provided to councils, so long as there is a prudent provision.  
The Council is recommended to approve the following MRP Statement:
For capital expenditure incurred before 1 April 2008 or which in the future will 
be Supported Capital Expenditure, the MRP policy will be:

 Existing practice - MRP will follow the existing practice outlined 
in former CLG regulations (option 1) 

These options provide for an approximate 4% reduction in the borrowing need 
(CFR) each year.
From 1 April 2008 for all unsupported borrowing (including PFI and finance 
leases) the MRP policy will be:

 Asset Life Method – MRP will be based on the estimated life of 
the assets, in accordance with the regulations (this option must be 
applied for any expenditure capitalised under a Capitalisation 
Direction) (option 3)

These options provide for a reduction in the borrowing need over 
approximately the asset’s life. 

Page 90



There is no requirement on the HRA to make a minimum revenue provision 
but there is a requirement for a charge for depreciation to be made (although 
there are transitional arrangements in place).
These proposals are in line with the policy approved for 2015/16

2.4 Core funds and expected investment balances
The application of resources (capital receipts, reserves etc.) to either finance 
capital expenditure or other budget decisions to support the revenue budget 
will have an ongoing impact on investments unless resources are 
supplemented each year from new sources (asset sales etc.).  Detailed below 
are estimates of the year end balances for each resource and anticipated day 
to day cash flow balances.

*Working capital balances shown are estimated year end; these may be 
higher mid year.

2.5 Affordability prudential indicators
The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing 
prudential indicators, but within this framework, prudential indicators are 
required to assess the affordability of the capital investment plans. These 
provide an indication of the impact of the capital investment plans on the 
Council’s overall finances.  As part of the formal governance process, the 
Council approves the indicators in paragraphs 2.6 to 2.9.
These indicators are currently being examined and will be presented to the 
meeting for discussion.

2.6 Ratio of financing costs to net revenue stream.
This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other 
long-term obligation costs net of investment income) against the net revenue 
stream.
The estimates of financing costs include current commitments and the 
proposals in this budget report.

2.7 Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on the band D 
council tax.

This indicator identifies the revenue costs associated with proposed changes to 
the three year capital programme recommended in this budget report compared 
to the Council’s existing approved commitments and current plans.  The 
assumptions are based on the budget, but will invariably include some estimates, 
such as the level of Government support, which are not published over a three 
year period.

Page 91



2.8 Incremental impact of capital investment decisions on housing rent 
levels.

Similar to the council tax calculation, this indicator identifies the trend in the cost of 
proposed changes in the housing capital programme recommended in this budget 
report compared to the Council’s existing commitments and current plans, 
expressed as a discrete impact on weekly rent levels.  

This indicator shows the revenue impact on any newly proposed changes, 
although any discrete impact will be constrained by rent controls.  

2.9 HRA Ratios

This information will be presented at the meeting.

3.   Borrowing

The capital expenditure plans set out in Section 2 provide details of the service 
activity of the Council.  The treasury management function ensures that the 
Council’s cash is organised in accordance with the the relevant professional 
codes, so that sufficient cash is available to meet this service activity.  This will 
involve both the organisation of the cash flow and, where capital plans require, the 
organisation of appropriate borrowing facilities.  The strategy covers the relevant 
treasury / prudential indicators, the current and projected debt positions and the 
annual investment strategy.

3.1 Current portfolio position
The Council’s treasury portfolio position at 31 March 2015, with forward 
projections are summarised below. The table shows the actual external debt (the 
treasury management operations).  This is measured against the underlying 
capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement - CFR), highlighting 
any over or under borrowing which will be presented to the meeting for 
discussion.

£’000’s 2014/15
Actual

2015/16
Estimate

2016/17
Estimate

2017/18
Estimate

2018/19
Estimate

External Debt
Debt at 1 April 67,493 67,469 67,456 67,456 67,456
Expected change in Debt (3) 0 0 0 0
Other long-term liabilities 
(OLTL) 0 0 0 0 0
Expected change in OLTL (21) (13) 0 0 0
Actual gross debt at 31 
March 

67,469 67,456 67,456 67,456 67,456

Page 92



Within the prudential indicators, there are a number of key indicators to 
ensure that the Council operates its activities within well-defined limits.  One 
of these is that the Council needs to ensure that its gross debt does not, except 
in the short term, exceed the total of the CFR in the preceding year plus the 
estimates of any additional CFR for 2016/17 and the following two financial years. 
This allows some flexibility for limited early borrowing for future years, but 
ensures that borrowing is not undertaken for revenue purposes.     
The Section 151 Officer reports that the Council complied with this prudential 
indicator in the current year and does not envisage difficulties for the future.  
This view takes into account current commitments, existing plans, and the 
proposals in this budget report.

3.2 Treasury Indicators: limits to borrowing activity
The Operational Boundary.  This is the limit beyond which external debt is 
not normally expected to exceed.  In most cases, this would be a similar figure 
to the CFR, but may be lower or higher depending on the levels of actual debt.
Operational boundary 
£’000’s

2015/16
Estimate

2016/17
Estimate

2017/18
Estimate

2018/19
Estimate

Debt 86,456 86,456 86,456 86,456
Other long term liabilities 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
Total 87,456 87,456 87,456 87,456

The Authorised Limit for external debt. A further key prudential indicator 
represents a control on the maximum level of borrowing.  This represents a 
limit beyond which external debt is prohibited, and this limit needs to be set or 
revised by the full Council.  It reflects the level of external debt, which while 
not desired, could be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the 
longer term.  

1. This is the statutory limit determined under section 3 (1) of the Local 
Government Act 2003. The Government retains an option to control 
either the total of all councils’ plans, or those of a specific council, 
although this power has never been exercised.

2. As part of the formal governance process, the Council approves the 
following indicators, as shown below:

Authorised limit £’000’s 2015/16
Estimate

2016/17
Estimate

2017/18
Estimate

2018/19
Estimate

Debt 89,456 89,456 89,456 89,456
Other long term liabilities 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000
Total 90,456 90,456 90,456 90,456

Separately, the Council is also limited to a maximum HRA CFR through the HRA 
self-financing regime.  This limit is currently:

HRA Debt Limit £’000 2015/16
Estimate

2016/17
Estimate

2017/18
Estimate

2018/19
Estimate

Total 74,701 74,701 74,701 74,701

Page 93



3.3. Prospects for interest rates

Capita Asset Services has been appointed as the Council’s treasury advisor 
and part of their service is to assist the Council to formulate a view on interest 
rates.  Appendix 1 draws together a number of current City forecasts for short 
term (Bank Rate) and longer fixed interest rates.  The following table gives the 
Capita Asset Services’ central view. 

Annual 
Average %

Bank Rate
%

PWLB Borrowing Rates%
(including certainty rate adjustment)

5 year 10 year 25 year 50 year
Dec 2015 0.50 2.30 2.90 3.60 3.50
Mar 2016 0.50 2.40 3.00 3.70 3.60
Jun 2016 0.75 2.60 3.10 3.80 3.70
Sep 2016 0.75 2.70 3.20 3.90 3.80
Dec 2016 1.00 2.80 3.30 4.00 3.90
Mar 2017 1.00 2.80 3.40 4.10 4.00
Jun 2017 1.25 2.90 3.50 4.10 4.00
Sep 2017 1.50 3.00 3.60 4.20 4.10
Dec 2017 1.50 3.20 3.70 4.30 4.20
Mar 2018 1.75 3.30 3.80 4.30 4.20
Jun 2018 1.75 3.40 3.90 4.40 4.30

UK. UK Gross Domestic Product (GDP) growth rates in 2013 of 2.2% and 
2.9% in 2014 were the strongest growth rates of any G7 country; the 2014 
growth rate was also the strongest UK rate since 2006 and the 2015 growth 
rate is likely to be a leading rate in the G7 again, probably being second to the 
US. However, quarter 1 of 2015 was weak at +0.4% (+2.9% y/y) though there 
was a rebound in quarter 2 to +0.7% (+2.4% y/y) before weakening again to 
+0.5% (2.3% y/y) in quarter 3. The November Bank of England Inflation 
Report included a forecast for growth to remain around 2.5% – 2.7% over the 
next three years, driven mainly by strong consumer demand as the squeeze 
on the disposable incomes of consumers has been reversed by a recovery in 
wage inflation at the same time that consumer price index(CPI) inflation has 
fallen to, or near to, zero since February 2015 this year.  Investment 
expenditure is also expected to support growth. However, since the August 
Inflation report was issued, worldwide economic statistics have distinctly 
weakened and the November Inflation Report flagged up particular concerns 
for the potential impact on the UK.

The Inflation Report was notably subdued in respect of the forecasts for inflation; 
this was expected to barely get back up to the 2% target within the 2-3 year time 
horizon. However, once the falls in oil, gas and food prices over recent months 
fall out of the 12 month calculation of CPI, there will be a sharp tick up from 
the current zero rate to around 1 percent in the second half of 2016. The 
increase in the forecast for inflation at the three year horizon was the biggest 
in a decade and at the two year horizon was the biggest since February 2013. 
There is considerable uncertainty around how quickly inflation will rise in the 

Page 94



next few years and this makes it difficult to forecast when the MPC will decide 
to make a start on increasing Bank Rate.  

USA. The American economy made a strong comeback after a weak first 
quarter’s growth at +0.6% (annualised), to grow by no less than 3.9% in 
quarter 2 of 2015, but then weakened again to 1.5% in quarter 3. The 
downbeat news in late August and in September about Chinese and 
Japanese growth and the knock on impact on emerging countries that are 
major suppliers of commodities, was cited as the main reason for the Fed’s 
decision at its September meeting to pull back from a first rate increase.  
However, the nonfarm payrolls figure for growth in employment in October 
was very strong and, together with a likely perception by the Fed. that 
concerns on the international scene have subsided, has now firmly opened up 
the possibility of a first rate rise in December.  

EZ. In the Eurozone (EZ), the European Central Bank (ECB) fired its big 
bazooka in January 2015 in unleashing a massive €1.1 trillion programme of 
quantitative easing (QE) to buy up high credit quality government and other 
debt of selected EZ countries. This programme of €60bn of monthly 
purchases started in March 2015 and it is intended to run initially to 
September 2016.  This appears to have had a positive effect in helping a 
recovery in consumer and business confidence and a start to a significant 
improvement in economic growth.  GDP growth rose to 0.5% in quarter 1 
2015 (1.0% y/y) but came in at +0.4% (+1.5% y/y) in quarter 2 and looks as if 
it may maintain this pace in quarter 3.  However, the recent downbeat 
Chinese and Japanese news has raised questions as to whether the ECB will 
need to boost its QE programme if it is to succeed in significantly improving 
growth in the EZ and getting inflation up from the current level of around zero 
to its target of 2%.    

Greece.  During July, Greece finally capitulated to EU demands to implement a 
major programme of austerity and is now cooperating fully with EU demands. An 
€86bn third bailout package has since been agreed though it did nothing to 
address the unsupportable size of total debt compared to GDP.  However, huge 
damage has been done to the Greek banking system and economy by the 
resistance of the Syriza Government, elected in January, to EU demands. The 
surprise general election in September gave the Syriza government a mandate to 
stay in power to implement austerity measures. However, there are major doubts 
as to whether the size of cuts and degree of reforms required can be fully 
implemented and so Greek exit from the euro may only have been delayed by this 
latest bailout.

 Investment returns are likely to remain relatively low during 2016/17 and 
beyond;

 Borrowing interest rates have been highly volatile during 2015 as 
alternating bouts of good and bad news have promoted optimism, and 
then pessimism, in financial markets.  Gilt yields have continued to 
remain at historically phenominally low levels during 2015. The policy of 
avoiding new borrowing by running down spare cash balances, has 

Page 95



served well over the last few years.  However, this needs to be carefully 
reviewed to avoid incurring higher borrowing costs in later times, when 
authorities will not be able to avoid new borrowing to finance new capital 
expenditure and/or to refinance maturing debt;

 There will remain a cost of carry to any new borrowing which causes an 
increase in investments as this will incur a revenue loss between 
borrowing costs and investment returns.

3.4  Borrowing strategy 

The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position.  This means that 
the capital borrowing need (the Capital Financing Requirement), has not been 
fully funded with loan debt as cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances 
and cash flow has been used as a temporary measure.  This strategy is prudent 
as investment returns are low and counterparty risk is relatively high.
Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution will be 
adopted with the 2016/17 treasury operations.  The Section 151 Officer will 
monitor interest rates in financial markets and adopt a pragmatic approach to 
changing circumstances:

 if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a sharp FALL in long and 
short term rates, e.g. due to a marked increase of risks around relapse 
into recession or of risks of deflation, then long term borrowings will be 
postponed, and potential rescheduling from fixed rate funding into short 
term borrowing will be considered.

 if it was felt that there was a significant risk of a much sharper RISE in 
long and short term rates than that currently forecast perhaps arising 
from an acceleration in the start date and in the rate of increase in central 
rates in the USA and UK, an increase in world economic activity or a 
sudden increase in inflation risks, then the portfolio position will be re-
appraised with the likely action that fixed rate funding will be drawn whilst 
interest rates are still lower than they will be in the next few years.

Any decisions will be reported to the appropriate decision making body at the next 
available opportunity.
The CFR is currently being reviewed and details of any changes will be presented 
to the meeting for discussion.

Treasury management limits on activity
There are three debt related treasury activity limits.  The purpose of these are 
to restrain the activity of the treasury function within certain limits, thereby 
managing risk and reducing the impact of any adverse movement in interest 
rates.  However, if these are set to be too restrictive they will impair the 
opportunities to reduce costs / improve performance.  The indicators are:

 Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure. This identifies a 
maximum limit for variable interest rates based upon the debt position 
net of investments;

Page 96



 Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure.  This is similar to the 
previous indicator and covers a maximum limit on fixed interest rates;

 Maturity structure of borrowing. These gross limits are set to reduce 
the Council’s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for 
refinancing, and are required for upper and lower limits.  

As part of the formal governance process, the Council approves the treasury 
indicators, as follows:

£,000’s 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19
Interest rate exposures

Upper Upper Upper
Limits on fixed interest rates 
based on net debt 86,456 86,456 86,456

Limits on variable interest 
rates based on net debt 8,000 8,000 8,000

Limits on fixed interest rates:
 Debt only
 Investments only

 86,456
(35,000)

 86,456
(35,000)

 86,456
(35,000)

Limits on variable interest 
rates:

 Debt only
 Investments only

  8,000
(15,000)

  8,000
(15,000)

  8,000
(15,000)

Maturity structure of fixed interest rate borrowing 2016/17
Lower Upper

Under 12 months 0% 100%
12 months to 2 years 0% 100%
2 years to 5 years 0% 100%
5 years to 10 years 0% 100%
10 years to 20 years 0% 100%
20 years to 30 years 0% 100%
30 years to 40 years 0% 100%
40 years to 50 years 0% 100%
Maturity structure of variable interest rate borrowing 2016/17

Lower Upper
Under 12 months 0% 10%
12 months to 2 years 0% 10%
2 years to 5 years 0% 10%
5 years to 10 years 0% 10%
10 years to 20 years 0% 10%
20 years to 30 years 0% 10%
30 years to 40 years 0% 10%
40 years to 50 years 0% 10%

Page 97



3.5  Policy on borrowing in advance of need 
The Council will not borrow more than or in advance of its needs, purely in order 
to profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow 
in advance will be within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement 
estimates, and will be considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be 
demonstrated and that the Council can ensure the security of such funds. 

Risks associated with any borrowing in advance activity will be subject to prior 
appraisal and subsequent reporting through the mid-year or annual reporting 
mechanism. 

3.6  Debt Rescheduling

As short term borrowing rates will be considerably cheaper than longer term fixed 
interest rates, there may be potential opportunities to generate savings by 
switching from long term debt to short term debt.  However, these savings will 
need to be considered in the light of the current treasury position and the size of 
the cost of debt repayment (premiums incurred). 

The reasons for any rescheduling to take place will include: 
 the generation of cash savings and / or discounted cash flow savings;
 helping to fulfil the treasury strategy;
 enhance the balance of the portfolio (amend the maturity profile and/or the 

balance of volatility).

Consideration will also be given to identify if there is any residual potential for 
making savings by running down investment balances to repay debt prematurely 
as short term rates on investments are likely to be lower than rates paid on 
current debt.  

All rescheduling will be reported to the Cabinet , at the earliest meeting following 
its action.

3.7  Municipal Bonds Agency

It is likely that the Municipal Bond Agency, currently in the process of being set up, 
will be offering loans to local authorities in the near future.  It is also hoped that the 
borrowing rates will be lower than those offered by the Public Works Loan Board 
(PWLB).  This Authority intends to make use of this new source of borrowing as 
and when appropriate.

Page 98



4  Annual Investment Strategy

4.1 Introduction: changes to credit rating methodology

The main rating agencies (Fitch, Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s) have, through 
much of the financial crisis, provided some institutions with a ratings “uplift” due to 
implied levels of sovereign support. Commencing in 2015, in response to the 
evolving regulatory regime, all three agencies have begun removing these “uplifts” 
with the timing of the process determined by regulatory progress at the national 
level. The process has been part of a wider reassessment of methodologies by 
each of the rating agencies. In addition to the removal of implied support, new 
methodologies are now taking into account additional factors, such as regulatory 
capital levels. In some cases, these factors have “netted” each other off, to leave 
underlying ratings either unchanged or little changed.  A consequence of these 
new methodologies is that they have also lowered the importance of the (Fitch) 
Support and Viability ratings and have seen the (Moody’s) Financial Strength 
rating withdrawn by the agency. 

In keeping with the agencies’ new methodologies, the rating element of our own 
credit assessment process now focuses solely on the Short and Long Term 
ratings of an institution. While this is the same process that has always been used 
for Standard & Poor’s, this has been a change in the use of Fitch and Moody’s 
ratings. It is important to stress that the other key elements to our process, namely 
the assessment of Rating Watch and Outlook information as well as the Credit 
Default Swap (CDS) overlay have not been changed. 

The evolving regulatory environment, in tandem with the rating agencies’ new 
methodologies also means that sovereign ratings are now of lesser importance in 
the assessment process. Where through the crisis, clients typically assigned the 
highest sovereign rating to their criteria, the new regulatory environment is 
attempting to break the link between sovereign support and domestic financial 
institutions. While this authority understands the changes that have taken place, it 
will continue to specify a minimum sovereign rating of AA-. This is in relation to the 
fact that the underlying domestic and where appropriate, international, economic 
and wider political and social background will still have an influence on the ratings 
of a financial institution.

It is important to stress that these rating agency changes do not reflect any 
changes in the underlying status or credit quality of the institution. They are 
merely reflective of a reassessment of rating agency methodologies in light of 
enacted and future expected changes to the regulatory environment in which 
financial institutions operate. While some banks have received lower credit ratings 
as a result of these changes, this does not mean that they are suddenly less 
credit worthy than they were formerly.  Rather, in the majority of cases, this mainly 
reflects the fact that implied sovereign government support has effectively been 
withdrawn from banks. They are now expected to have sufficiently strong balance 
sheets to be able to withstand foreseeable adverse financial circumstances 
without government support. In fact, in many cases, the balance sheets of banks 
are now much more robust than they were before the 2008 financial crisis when 

Page 99



they had higher ratings than now. However, this is not universally applicable, 
leaving some entities with modestly lower ratings than they had through much of 
the “support” phase of the financial crisis. 

4.2 Investment policy

The Council’s investment policy has regard to the CLG’s Guidance on Local 
Government Investments (“the Guidance”) and the revised CIPFA Treasury 
Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance 
Notes (“the CIPFA TM Code”).  The Council’s investment priorities will be security 
first, liquidity second, then return.

In accordance with the above guidance from CIPFA , and in order to minimise the 
risk to investments, the Council applies minimum acceptable credit criteria in 
order to generate a list of highly creditworthy counterparties which also enables 
diversification and thus avoidance of concentration risk. The key ratings used to 
monitor counterparties are the Short Term and Long Term ratings.

The Council’s funds are managed by CPBS with reference to a detailed cash flow 
forecast on a daily basis for the current year. Protocols are in place to govern the 
movement of funds within specific limits. 

Ratings will not be the sole determinant of the quality of an institution; it is 
important to continually assess and monitor the financial sector on both a micro 
and macro basis and in relation to the economic and political environments in 
which institutions operate. The assessment will also take account of information 
that reflects the opinion of the markets. To this end the Council will engage with its 
advisors to maintain a monitor on market pricing such as “credit default swaps” 
and overlay that information on top of the credit ratings. 

Other information sources used will include the financial press, share price and 
other such information pertaining to the banking sector in order to establish the 
most robust scrutiny process on the suitability of potential investment 
counterparties.

The intention of the strategy is to provide security of investment and minimisation 
of risk.

Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed in 
Appendix 3 under the ‘specified’ and ‘non-specified’ investments categories. The 
maximum total investments to any individual financial institution or its parent 
group is £5m. There is also a limit of £5m for investments with part-nationalised 
banks.

Page 100



4.3 Creditworthiness policy 

This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Capita Asset 
Services.  This service employs a sophisticated modelling approach utlilising 
credit ratings from the three main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and 
Standard and Poor’s.  The credit ratings of counterparties are supplemented with 
the following overlays: 

 credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies;
 CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings;
 sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy 

countries.

This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit watches and credit 
outlooks in a weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay of 
CDS spreads for which the end product is a series of colour coded bands which 
indicate the relative creditworthiness of counterparties.  These colour codes are 
used by the Council to determine the suggested duration for investments.   The 
Council will therefore use counterparties within the following durational bands: 

 Yellow 5 years
 Dark Pink 5 years for Enhanced money market funds with a credit score 

of 1.25 
 Light Pink 5 years for Enhanced money market funds with a credit score 

of 1.5
 Purple 2 years
 Blue 1 year (only applies to nationalised or semi nationalised UK

Banks)
 Orange 1 year
 Red 6 months
 Green 100 days 
 No colour not to be used 

The Capita Asset Services creditworthiness service uses a wider array of 
information than just primary ratings and by using a risk weighted scoring system, 
does not give undue preponderance to just one agency’s ratings.

Typically the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council use will be a Short Term 
rating (Fitch or equivalents) of F1 and a  Long Term rating of A-.  There may be 
occasions when the counterparty ratings from one rating agency are marginally 
lower than these ratings but may still be used.  In these instances consideration 
will be given to the whole range of ratings available, or other topical market 
information, to support their use.

Page 101



All credit ratings will be monitored daily. CPBS is alerted to changes to ratings of 
all three agencies through its use of the Capita Asset Services creditworthiness 
service. 

 if a downgrade results in the counterparty / investment scheme no longer 
meeting the Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment 
will be withdrawn immediately.

 in addition to the use of credit ratings CPBS will be advised of information 
in movements in CDS spreads against the iTraxx benchmark and other 
market data on a weekly basis. Extreme market movements may result in 
downgrade of an institution or removal from the Council’s lending list.

Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service.  In addition this 
Council will also use market data and market information, information on any 
external support for banks to help support its decision making process.

4.4 Country limits

Due care will be taken to consider the country, group and sector exposure of the 
Council’s investments.

The Council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties from the 
United Kingdom or countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AA- from 
Fitch. The list of countries that qualify using this credit criteria as at the date of this 
report are shown in Appendix 4.  This list will be added to, or deducted from, by 
officers should ratings change in accordance with this policy.

4.5 Investment Strategy

In-house funds.  Investments will be made with reference to the core balance 
and cash flow requirements and the outlook for short-term interest rates (i.e. rates 
for investments up to 12 months).   

Investment returns expectations.  Bank Rate is forecast to remain unchanged 
at  0.5% before starting to rise from quarter 2 of 2016. Bank Rate forecasts for 
financial year ends (March) are: 

 2016/ 2017  1.00%
 2017/ 2018  1.75%
 2018/ 2019  2.00%

The suggested budgeted investment earnings rates for returns on investments 
placed for periods up to 100 days during each financial year for the next four 
years are as follows: 

2016/17 1.15%
2017/18 1.75%
2018/19 2.25%

  2019/20 3.00%

Page 102



The overall balance of risks to these forecasts is currently to the downside (i.e. 
start of increases in Bank Rate occurs later).  However, should the pace of growth 
quicken and / or forecasts for increases in inflation rise, there could be an upside 
risk.

Investment treasury indicator and limit - total principal funds invested for 
greater than 364 days. These limits are set with regard to the Council’s liquidity 
requirements and to reduce the need for early sale of an investment, and are 
based on the availability of funds after each year-end.

As part of the formal governance process, the Council approves the treasury 
indicator and limit, as follows:

Maximum principal sums invested > 364 days
£’000’s 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19

Principal sums invested 
> 364 days

£m
4,000

£m
4,000

£m
4,000

For its cash flow generated balances, the Council will seek to utilise its business 
reserve instant access and notice accounts, money market funds and short-dated 
deposits (overnight to 100 days) in order to benefit from the compounding of 
interest.  

4.6 Investment Risk Benchmarking
The Council has not adopted any formal benchmarks in this area, as Officers 
believe that decisions on counterparties and maximum investment levels are 
adequate to monitor the current and trend position, and amend the 
operational strategy to manage risk as conditions change.  

4.7   End of year investment report

At the end of the financial year, the Council will report on its investment activity as 
part of its Annual Treasury Report. 

Page 103



5   APPENDICES

1. Interest rate forecasts

2. Economic background

3. Treasury Management Practice 1 – Credit and Counterparty Risk 
Management

4. Approved countries for investments

5. Treasury management scheme of delegation

6. The treasury management role of the Section 151 Officer

Page 104



APPENDIX A

APPENDIX 1 - Interest Rate Forecasts 2016 - 2019

PWLB rates and forecast shown below take account of the 20 basis point certainty rate reduction effective as of the 1st November 2012.

P
age 105



APPENDIX 2 - Economic Background

UK.  UK GDP growth rates in of 2.2% in 2013 and 2.9% in 2014 were the 
strongest growth rates of any G7 country; the 2014 growth rate was also the 
strongest UK rate since 2006 and the 2015 growth rate is likely to be a leading 
rate in the G7 again. However, quarter 1 of 2015 was weak at +0.4%, although 
there was a short lived rebound in quarter 2 to +0.7% before it subsided again to 
+0.5% (+2.3% y/y) in quarter 3. The Bank of England’s November Inflation Report 
included a forecast for growth to remain around 2.5% – 2.7% over the next three 
years. For this recovery, however, to become more balanced and sustainable in 
the longer term, it still needs to move away from dependence on consumer 
expenditure and the housing market to manufacturing and investment 
expenditure. The strong growth since 2012 has resulted in unemployment falling 
quickly to a current level of 5.3%.

The Monetary Policy Committee (MPC) has been particularly concerned that 
the squeeze on the disposable incomes of consumers should be reversed by 
wage inflation rising back above the level of CPI inflation in order to underpin 
a sustainable recovery.  It has, therefore, been encouraging in 2015 to see 
wage inflation rising significantly above CPI inflation which has been around 
zero since February. The Inflation Report was notably subdued in respect of 
the forecasts for CPI inflation; this was expected to barely get back up to the 
2% target within the 2-3 year time horizon.  However, once the falls in oil, gas 
and food prices over recent months fall out of the 12 month calculation of CPI, 
there will be a sharp tick up from the current zero rate to around 1% in the 
second half of 2016. Indeed, the increase in the forecast for inflation at the 
three year horizon was the biggest in a decade and at the two year horizon it 
was the biggest since February 2013. Nevertheless, despite average weekly 
earnings ticking up to 3.0% y/y in the three months ending in September, this 
is unlikely to provide ammunition for the MPC to take action to raise Bank 
Rate in the near future as labour productivity growth has meant that net labour 
unit costs appear to be rising by about only 1% y/y. Having said that, at the 
start of October, data came out that indicated annual labour cost growth had 
jumped sharply in quarter 2 from +0.3% to +2.2%: time will tell if this is just a 
blip or the start of a trend. 

There is, therefore, considerable uncertainty around how quickly inflation will 
rise in the next few years and this makes it difficult to forecast when the MPC 
will decide to make a start on increasing Bank Rate.  There are also concerns 
around the fact that the central banks of the UK and US currently have few 
monetary policy options left to them given that central rates are near to zero 
and huge QE is already in place.  There are, therefore, arguments that they 
need to raise rates sooner, rather than later, so as to have some options 
available for use if there was another major financial crisis in the near future.  
But it is unlikely that either would raise rates until they are sure that growth 
was securely embedded and ‘noflation’ was not a significant threat.

Page 106



The forecast for the first increase in Bank Rate has, therefore, been pushed back 
progressively during 2015 from Q4 2015 to Q2 2016 and increases after that will 
be at a much slower pace, and to much lower levels than prevailed before 2008, 
as increases in Bank Rate will have a much bigger effect on heavily indebted 
consumers than they did before 2008. 

The Government’s revised Budget in July eased the pace of cut backs from 
achieving a budget surplus in 2018/19 to achieving that in 2019/20. 

USA.  GDP growth in 2014 of 2.4% was followed by Q1 2015 growth, which was 
depressed by exceptionally bad winter weather, at only +0.6% (annualised).  
However, growth rebounded very strongly in Q2 to 3.9% (annualised) before 
dipping again in Q3 to 1.5%. 

Until the turmoil in financial markets in August, caused by fears about the 
slowdown in Chinese growth, it had been strongly expected that the Fed. may 
start to increase rates in September.  However, the Fed pulled back from that first 
increase due to global risks which might depress US growth and put downward 
pressure on inflation, as well as a 20% appreciation of the dollar which has 
caused the Fed. to lower its growth forecasts.  Although the non-farm payrolls 
figures for growth in employment in August and September were disappointingly 
weak, the October figure was stunningly strong and, together with a likely 
perception by the Fed. that concerns on the international scene have subsided 
since August, has now firmly opened up the possibility of a first rate rise in 
December.

Eurozone. The ECB fired its big bazooka in January 2015 in unleashing a 
massive €1.1 trillion programme of quantitative easing to buy up high credit 
quality government and other debt of selected EZ countries. This programme 
of €60bn of monthly purchases started in March 2015 and it is intended to run 
initially to September 2016.  This appears to have had a positive effect in 
helping a recovery in consumer and business confidence and a start to a 
significant improvement in economic growth.  GDP growth rose to 0.5% in Q1 
2015 (1.0% y/y) but came in at +0.4% (+1.5% y/y) in Q2 and looks as if it may 
maintain this pace in Q3.  However, the recent downbeat Chinese and 
Japanese news has raised questions as to whether the ECB will need to 
boost its QE programme if it is to succeed in significantly improving growth in 
the EZ and getting inflation up from the current level of around zero to its 
target of 2%.    

Greece.  During July, Greece finally capitulated to EU demands to implement a 
major programme of austerity. An €86bn third bailout package has since been 
agreed although it did nothing to address the unsupportable size of total debt 
compared to GDP.  However, huge damage has been done to the Greek banking 
system and economy by the initial resistance of the Syriza Government, elected in 
January, to EU demands. The surprise general election in September gave the 
Syriza government a mandate to stay in power to implement austerity measures. 
However, there are major doubts as to whether the size of cuts and degree of 
reforms required can be fully implemented and so a Greek exit from the euro may 
only have been delayed by this latest bailout.

23

Page 107



China and Japan.  Japan is causing considerable concern as the increase in 
sales tax in April 2014 suppressed consumer expenditure and growth.  In Q2 
2015 quarterly growth shrank by -0.3% after a short burst of strong growth of 
1.0% during Q1.  Japan has been hit hard by the downturn in China during 2015.  
This does not bode well for Japan as the Abe government has already fired its 
first two arrows to try to stimulate recovery and a rise in inflation from near zero, 
but has dithered about firing the third, deregulation of protected and inefficient 
areas of the economy.

As for China, the Government has been very active during 2015 in implementing 
several stimulus measures to try to ensure the economy hits the growth target of 
7% for the current year and to bring some stability after the major fall in the 
onshore Chinese stock market during the summer.  Many commentators are 
concerned that recent growth figures could have been massaged to hide a 
downturn to a lower growth figure.  There are also major concerns as to the 
creditworthiness of much of the bank lending to corporates and local government 
during the post 2008 credit expansion period. Overall, China is still expected to 
achieve a growth figure that the EU would be envious of.  Nevertheless, concerns 
about whether the Chinese economy could be heading for a hard landing, and the 
volatility of the Chinese stock market, which was the precursor to falls in world 
financial markets in August and September, remain a concern.

Emerging countries. There are also considerable concerns about the 
vulnerability of some emerging countries and their corporates which are getting 
caught in a perfect storm. Having borrowed massively in dollar denominated debt 
since the financial crisis (as investors searched for yield by channelling 
investment cash away from western economies with dismal growth, depressed 
bond yields and near zero interest rates into emerging countries) there is now a 
strong flow back to those western economies with strong growth and an imminent 
rise in interest rates and bond yields.  

This change in investors’ strategy, and the massive reverse cash flow, has 
depressed emerging country currencies and, together with a rise in expectations 
of a start to central interest rate increases in the US, has helped to cause the 
dollar to appreciate significantly.  In turn, this has made it much more costly for 
emerging countries to service their dollar denominated debt at a time when their 
earnings from commodities are depressed. There are also likely to be major 
issues when previously borrowed debt comes to maturity and requires refinancing 
at much more expensive rates.

Corporates (worldwide) heavily involved in mineral extraction and / or the 
commodities market may also be at risk and this could also cause volatility in 
equities and safe haven flows to bonds. Financial markets may also be buffeted 
by the sovereign wealth funds of those countries that are highly exposed to falls in 
commodity prices and which, therefore, may have to liquidate investments in 
order to cover national budget deficits.

24

Page 108



CAPITA ASSET SERVICES FORWARD VIEW 

Economic forecasting remains difficult with so many external influences weighing 
on the UK. Our Bank Rate forecasts, (and also MPC decisions), will be liable to 
further amendment depending on how economic data evolves over time. Capita 
Asset Services undertook its last review of interest rate forecasts on 9 November 
2015 shortly after the publication of the quarterly Bank of England Inflation Report.  
There is much volatility in rates and bond yields as news ebbs and flows in 
negative or positive ways. This latest forecast includes a first increase in Bank 
Rate in quarter 2 of 2016. 

The overall trend in the longer term will be for gilt yields and PWLB rates to rise 
when economic recovery is firmly established accompanied by rising inflation and 
consequent increases in Bank Rate, and the eventual unwinding of QE. 
Increasing investor confidence in eventual world economic recovery is also likely 
to compound this effect as recovery will encourage investors to switch from bonds 
to equities.  

The overall balance of risks to economic recovery in the UK is currently evenly 
balanced. Only time will tell just how long this current period of strong economic 
growth will last; it also remains exposed to vulnerabilities in a number of key 
areas.

However, the overall balance of risks to our Bank Rate forecast is probably to the 
downside, i.e. the first increase, and subsequent increases, may be delayed 
further if recovery in GDP growth, and forecasts for inflation increases, are lower 
than currently expected. Market expectations in November, (based on short 
sterling), for the first Bank Rate increase are currently around mid-year 2016.

Downside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB rates currently 
include: 

 Geopolitical risks in Eastern Europe, the Middle East and Asia, 
increasing safe haven flows. 

 UK economic growth turns significantly weaker than we currently 
anticipate. 

 Weak growth or recession in the UK’s main trading partners - the EU, 
US and China. 

 A resurgence of the Eurozone sovereign debt crisis.
 Recapitalisation of European banks requiring more government 

financial support.
 Emerging country economies, currencies and corporates destabilised 

by falling commodity prices and / or the start of Fed. rate increases, 
causing a flight to safe havens.

25

Page 109



The potential for upside risks to current forecasts for UK gilt yields and PWLB 
rates, especially for longer term PWLB rates include: -

 Uncertainty around the risk of a UK exit from the EU. 
 The commencement by the US Federal Reserve of increases in the 

Fed. funds rate causing a fundamental reassessment by investors of 
the relative risks of holding bonds as opposed to equities and leading 
to a major flight from bonds to equities.

 UK inflation returning to significantly higher levels than in the wider 
EU and US, causing an increase in the inflation premium inherent to 
gilt yields.

26

Page 110



APPENDIX 3- Treasury Management Practice (TMP1) – Credit and 
Counterparty Risk Management

SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: All such investments will be sterling denominated, 
with maturities up to maximum of 1 year, meeting the minimum ‘high’ quality 
criteria where applicable.

Minimum ‘High’ Credit 
Criteria Use

Debt Management Agency Deposit 
Facility N/A In-house

Term deposits – local authorities  N/A In-house

Term deposits – banks and building 
societies 

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers credit 
rating matrix

In-house

Certificates of deposit issued by banks 
and building societies

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers credit 
rating matrix

In-house

Treasury Bills UK sovereign rating In-house
Bonds issued by multilateral 
development banks AAA In-house buy and 

hold

Money market funds AAA
In-house (£5m 
limit for cash flow 
purposes)

Term deposits with nationalised banks and banks and building societies 

If forward deposits are to be made, the forward period plus the deal period should 
not exceed one year in aggregate.  

N.B. buy and hold may also include sale at a financial year end and repurchase 
the following day in order to accommodate the requirements of the Accounting 
Code of Practice.

27

Minimum Credit 
Criteria Use Max of total 

investments
Max. 
maturity 
period

UK  part nationalised 
banks

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers 
credit rating matrix

In-
house £5m 1 year

Banks part 
nationalised by AAA 
or AA- sovereign 
rating countries – non 
UK

Minimum colour of 
green on our external 
treasury advisers 
credit rating matrix

In-
house £5m 1 year

Page 111



Accounting treatment of investments.  The accounting treatment may differ 
from the underlying cash transactions arising from investment decisions made by 
this Council. To ensure that the Council is protected from any adverse revenue 
impact, which may arise from these differences, we will review the accounting 
implications of new transactions before they are undertaken.

NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS: These are any investments which do not 
meet the Specified Investment criteria.  A maximum of £5m will be held in 
aggregate in non-specified investments.

1. Maturities of ANY Period

Minimum Credit 
Criteria Use

Max %  of 
non-specified 
investments

Max. 
maturity 
period

Fixed term deposits with 
variable rate and variable 
maturities: -Structured 
deposits

Sovereign rating  
of AAA or  AA- 
and minimum 
colour of green on 
our external 
treasury advisers 
credit rating matrix

In-house 100% 1 year

UK Government Gilts UK sovereign 
rating

In-house 
buy and 
hold

100% 2 year

Sovereign bond issues 
(other than the UK govt) AAA

In-house 
buy and 
hold

100% 2 year

Bond issuance issued by a 
financial institution which is 
explicitly guaranteed by  
the UK Government  (eg 
National Rail) 

UK sovereign 
rating

In-house 
buy and 
hold

100% 2 year

Collateralised deposits 
(see note 1)

UK  Sovereign 
rating In-house 100% 2 year

28

Page 112



Collective Investment Schemes structured as Open Ended Investment Companies 
(OEICs): -

Minimum Credit 
Criteria Use

Max %  of 
non-specified 
investments

Max. 
maturity 
period

 1. Government Liquidity
     Funds

Long-term AAA
volatility rating 
MR1+

In-house 100% 5 years

 2. Enhanced Money 
Market Funds with a 
credit score of 1.25

Long-term AAA
volatility rating 
MR1+

In-house 100% 5 years

 3. Enhanced Money 
Market Funds with a 
credit score of 1.50

Long-term AAA
volatility rating 
MR1+

In-house 100% 5 years

4. Bond Funds
Long-term AAA
volatility rating 
MR1+

In-house 100% 5 years

 5. Gilt Funds
Long-term AAA
volatility rating 
MR1+

In-house 100% 5 years

Note 1. as collateralised deposits are backed by collateral of AAA rated local 
authority LOBOs, this investment instrument is regarded as being a AAA rated 
investment as it is equivalent to lending to a local authority.

2.  Maturities in excess of 1 year

Minimum Credit 
Criteria Use

Max %  of 
non-
specified 
investments

Max. 
maturity 
period

Term deposits – UK local 
authorities N/A In-

house 100% 5 year

Term deposits – banks and 
building societies 

Sovereign rating  of 
AAA or  AA- and 
minimum colour of 
orange on our 
external treasury 
advisers credit 
rating matrix

In-
house 100% 5 year

Certificates of deposit issued 
by banks and building 
societies 

Sovereign rating  of 
AAA or  AA- and 
minimum colour of 
orange on our 
external treasury 
advisers credit 
rating matrix

In-
house 100% 5 year

Bonds issued by multilateral 
development banks AAA In-

house 100% 5 year

29

Page 113



Whilst these are maximum limits, under normal circumstances the Section 151 
Officer will ensure lower limits are maintained. The higher limits are required to 
allow flexibility in the movement of funds if a particular issue or circumstance 
arises e.g. global banking crisis.

The maximum total investment to any individual financial institution or its parent 
group is £5m. 

30

Page 114



APPENDIX 4 - Approved countries for investments

AAA                     
 Australia
 Canada
 Denmark
 Germany
 Singapore
 Sweden
 Switzerland

AA+
 Finland
 Netherlands 
 U.K.
 U.S.A.

AA
 Abu Dhabi (UAE)
 France
 Qatar

AA-
 Belgium 

31

Page 115



APPENDIX 5 - Treasury management scheme of delegation

(i) Full council
 receiving and reviewing reports on treasury management policies, 

practices and activities
 approval of annual strategy.
 approval of / amendments to the council’s adopted clauses, treasury 

management policy statement and treasury management practices
 budget consideration and approval
 approval of the division of responsibilities as contained in the Financial 

Regulations

(ii) Cabinet and Governance & Audit Committee
 reviewing the treasury management policy and procedures and making 

recommendations to the responsible body.
 receiving and reviewing the annual strategy and making recommendations 

to the responsible body.
 receiving and reviewing regular monitoring reports and acting on 

recommendations.

SCRUTINY AND MONITORING

Council delegates the scrutiny and monitoring of the Treasury Management 
function to the Governance and Audit Committee.  As a minimum they will receive 
a Mid Term Treasury report on investment issues and performance. Training will 
be made available for members of the Governance and Audit Committee to 
ensure they have the necessary skills to undertake this role. Recommendations 
will be reported to Cabinet.

The Governance and Audit Committee will also have access to professional and 
independent advice and support as required in order to undertake this role.

32

Page 116



APPENDIX 6 - The treasury management role of the Section 151 Officer and 
deputy

The Section 151 Officer responsibilities are as follows:

 managing the Treasury Management function

 recommending treasury management policies and practice for 
approval, reviewing the same regularly and monitoring compliance

 Ensuring the adequacy of treasury management resources and skills 
are maintained by CPBS

 Receiving and reviewing management information reports from 
CPBS

 Reviewing the performance of the treasury management function

 Informing Elected members

 Submitting regular treasury management reports to Members
 Reviewing the treasury management strategy
 Maintaining an effective internal audit of treasury management and 

liaising with external audit.

Compass Point Business Services (CPBS) is responsible for the 
provision of:

 treasury management strategy statements and practices for approval 
 regular treasury management policy reports
 budget and budget variations
 management information reports
 adequate treasury management resources and skills, and effective division 

of responsibilities within the treasury management function, and;
 arranging the appointment of external treasury management advisors. 

Where the use of particular instant access accounts, notice accounts and 
money market funds has been approved by the Section 151 Officer, CPBS 
treasury officers have delegated authority to withdraw and deposit funds within 
the agreed limits contained in this strategy.

33

Page 117



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Finance Manager

To: Governance and Audit Committee – 3 December 2015

(Author: Ken Trotter – Interim Chief Accountant)

Subject: Governance and Audit Committee Self-Assessment

Purpose: The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) 
advocate that it is good practice for Audit Committees to undertake regular 
assessments. Thus enabling members to gain an appreciation of what 
affords best practice, to confirm the level of compliance being achieved, 
and to identify any potential areas for enhancements to be made to 
arrangements.

Recommendation: 

1) That Members note the completed checklist at Appendix 1 and the actions to be completed
2) Members Development Programme requirements to be a standard agenda item for 2016/17.
3) That the checklist be reviewed on a rolling quarterly basis by Finance & Audit.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards call for audit committees to assess their remit 
and effectiveness in keeping with Standard 1000 – Purpose, Authority and Responsibility

1.2 CIPFA’s Audit Committee Self-Assessment Checklist (attached at Appendix 1) focuses on 
6 fundamental areas, and 66 individual aspects of operations. The key areas are as follows:

 Establishment, Operation and Duties;
 Internal Control;
 Financial Reporting and Regulatory Matters;
 Internal Audit;
 External Audit; and
 Administration.

1.3 At a workshop session on 24 November 2015 a Finance & Audit desktop review was 
carried out and the checklist, shown in Appendix 1, to assess the Audit and Governance 
performance against the CIPFA standard was completed. 

1.4 The exercise identified actions that would improve the effectiveness of the committee. 
These are highlighted bold in the appendix. The actions include producing an annual report 
of the work of the audit committee.

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 The alternative approach would be for the Audit Committee not complete the Self- 
Assessment exercise, however this would result in no assurance being provided that the 
Committee is assisting the Council in achieving good corporate governance, and is 
sufficiently proactive.

Page 119

Agenda Item 10.



3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 Completion of the Self-Assessment Checklist provides feedback on the effectiveness of the 
current arrangements, and ensures that best practice is followed by the Committee, and 
good corporate governance is achieved.

4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The Audit Committee are able to demonstrate that best practice is followed and that they 
are proactive in in helping to raise the profile of internal control, risk management and 
financial reporting matters at the Council.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Corporate Priorities

5.1.1 The Audit Committee, through its terms of reference, helps to ensure that the service areas 
and risks reported are working towards the efficient and effective delivery of the Council’s 
corporate priorities. 

5.2 Risk Management 

5.2.1 The Committee supports the oversight of the Council’s risk management framework, which 
will in turn ensure that the Council’s key risks are accurately reviewed and addressed. This 
is ensured by following best practice and adopting sound terms of reference.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 None.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 CIPFA - Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy.

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Ken Trotter – Interim Chief Accountant
Telephone Number: 01775 764684
Email: ktrotter@sholland.gov.uk

Director / Officer who will be attending the Meeting
Name and Post: Ken Trotter – Interim Chief Accountant

Key Decision: No

Exempt Decision: No

Appendices attached to this report: 
Appendix A Governance and Audit Committee Self-Assessment Checklist

Page 120



South Holland -  Governance and Audit Committee Self Assessment Checklist Review Conducted 25 September 2014

No. Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Actions

1. ESTABLISHMENT, OPERATION AND DUTIES

Role and Remit

1.1 1 Does the audit committee have written terms of
reference?

√ Referenced in Part 3 of the Constitution

1.2 1 Do the terms of reference cover the core functions
of an audit committee as identified in the CIPFA
guidance?

√

1.3 1 Are the terms of reference approved by the council
and reviewed periodically?

√ No changes in 2015/16

1.4 1 Has the audit committee been provided with
sufficient membership, authority and resources to
perform its role effectively and independently?

√

1.5 1 Can the audit committee access other
committees and full council as necessary?

√ The committee minutes are reported to Council. Members also sit on scrutiny
panels. 

1.6 1 Does the authority's Annual Governance
Statement include a description of the audit
committee's establishment and activities?

√

1.7 2 Does the audit committee periodically assess its
own effectiveness?

√

1.8 2 Does the audit committee make a formal annual
report on its work and performance during the year
to full council?

√ It was decided that the committee would introduce an annual report to
promote its work. 

Membership, Induction and training

1.9 1 Has the membership of the audit committee been
formally agreed and a quorum set?

√

1.10 1 Is the chair independent of the executive function? √

1.11 1 Has the audit committee chair either previous
knowledge of, or received appropriate training on,
financial and risk management, accounting
concepts and standards, and the regulatory
regime?

√

P
age 121



No. Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Actions

1.12 1 Are new audit committee members provided with
an appropriate induction?

√ There is an ongoing Members' Development Programme   

1.13 1 Have all members skills and experiences been
assessed and training given for identified gaps?

√ Training on finance matters was identified as a need and is being regularly
carried out on specific topics.

1.14 1 Has each member declared his or her business
interests?

√ Members are required to declare business interests in a centrally held register

1.15 2 Are members sufficiently independent of the other
key committees of the council?

√ No member of the committee sits on Cabinet, although a number also have
positions on the council's scrutiny panels

Meetings
1.16 1 Does the audit committee meet regularly? √ Scheduled to meet on four occasions each year
1.17 1 Do the terms of reference set out the frequency of

meetings?
√ Committee reporting cycle is established and is flexible in respect of

special or specific meetings which can be carried out as necessary
through the year.

1.18 1 Does the audit committee calendar meet the
authority's business needs, governance needs
and the financial calendar?

√

1.19 1 Are members attending meetings on a regular
basis and if not, is appropriate action taken?

√

1.20 1 Are meetings free and open without political
influences being displayed?

√

1.21 1 Does the authority's S151 officer or deputy attend
all meetings?

√

1.22 1 Does the audit committee have the benefit of
attendance of appropriate officers at its meetings?

√ Attendance records have been reviewed and officers have provided the required
level of support at all meetings.

INTERNAL CONTROL

2.1 1 Does the audit committee consider the findings of
the annual review of the effectiveness of the
system of internal control (as required by the
Accounts and Audit Regulations) including the
review of the effectiveness of the system of
internal audit?

√ Internal audit reports are reviewed regularly by the committee.

2.2 1 Does the audit committee have responsibility for
review and approval of the Annual Governance
Statement and does it consider it separately from
the accounts?

√ The draft statement of accounts were considered by the Committee in June and
the final accounts were approved in September. The draft AGS was considered
by the Committee in June also. 

2.3 1 Does the audit committee consider how
meaningful the Annual Governance Statement is?

√ Displayed through the level of debate as shown in the minutes.

P
age 122



No. Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Actions

2.4 1 Does the audit committee satisfy itself that the
system of internal control has operated effectively
throughout the reporting period?

√ The committee receives regular reports from the Head of Audit and Risk
Management

2.5 1 Has the audit committee considered how it
integrates with other committees that may have
responsibility for risk management?

√ The Audit Committee is responsible for receiving risk management reports.

2.6 1 Has the audit committee (with delegated
responsibility) or the full council adopted
"Managing the Risk of Fraud - Actions to Counter
Fraud and Corruption?"

√

The Audit Committee received the updated Counter Fraud, Corruption and
Bribery Policy and Whistleblowing Policy during 2012/13. 

2.7 1 Does the audit committee ensure that the
"Actions to Counter Fraud and Corruption" are
being implemented?

√ When it reviews new/updated Counter Fraud Strategy and Whistleblowing
Policy, plus new Audit Plans which do take account of such actions.

2.8 2 Is the audit committee made aware of the role of
risk management in the preparation of the internal
audit plan?

√ This is included in the report when the committee considers the internal audit
plan. 

2.9 2 Does the audit committee review the authority's
strategic risk register at least annually?

√ The Committee receives quarterly risk governance reports and also the
strategic risk register. 

2.10 2 Does the audit committee monitor how the
authority assesses its risk?

√ See 2.9

2.11 2 Do the audit committee's terms of reference
include oversight of the risk management
processes?

√

FINANCIAL REPORTING AND REGULATORY MATTERS

3.1 1 Is the audit committee's role in the consideration
and/or approval of the annual accounts clearly
defined?

√ Established in the terms of reference.

3.2 1 Does the audit committee consider specifically:
- the suitability of accounting policies and
treatments;
- major judgements made;
- large write-offs;
- changes in accounting treatment;
- the reasonableness of accounting estimates;
- the narrative aspects of reporting?

√ These issues are considered when the committee reviews the statements of
accounts

3.3 1 Is an audit committee meeting scheduled to
receive the external auditor's report to those
charged with governance including a discussion of
proposed adjustments to the accounts an other
issues arising form the audit?

√ Received each September prior to the final approval of the annual statements of
accounts

P
age 123



No. Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Actions

3.4 1 Does the audit committee review management's
letter of representation?

√ See 3.3

3.5 2 Does the audit committee annually review the
accounting policies of the authority?

√ See 3.3

3.6 2 Does the audit committee gain an understanding
of management's procedures for preparing the
authority's annual accounts?

√ A pre-meeting is held to explain the processes used, and changes to
regulations and policies prior to the committee formally reviewing the
statements of accounts.

3.7 2 Does the audit committee have a mechanism to
keep it aware of topical legal and regulatory
issues, for example by receiving circulars and
through training?

√ Quarterly audit newsletters from Internal Audit and Briefing Notes from External
Audit. There is also a standing agenda item - Training which can be used to
ensure Members are up to date.

INTERNAL AUDIT
4.1 1 Does the audit committee approve annually and in

detail, the internal audit strategic and annual
plans including consideration of whether the
scope of internal audit work addresses the
authority's significant risks?

√ Annual Audit planning reports taken to Committee in March each year.

4.2 1 Does internal audit have an appropriate reporting
line to the audit committee?

√ As stated in the Audit Charter.

4.3 1 Does the audit committee receive periodic reports
from the internal audit service including an annual
report from the Head of Internal Audit?

√ Updates on progress against the annual plan and follow up of recommendations
are presented each committee

4.4 1 Are follow-up audits by internal audit monitored by
the audit committee and does the committee
consider the adequacy of implementation of
recommendations?

√ These are covered in the Head of Audit and Risk Management's regular
progress reports to the committee

4.5 1 Does the audit committee hold periodic private
discussions with the Head of Internal Audit?

√ Ad-hoc Meetings as necessary

4.6 1 Is there appropriate co-operation between the
internal and external auditors?

√ Joint Working Protocol in place.

4.7 1 Does the audit committee review the adequacy of
internal audit staffing and other resources?

√ See 4.1

4.8 1 Has the audit committee evaluated whether its
internal audit service complies with CIPFA's Code
of Practice for Internal Audit in Local Government
in the United Kingdom?

√ As part of the Annual Report and Opinion which incorporates the Review of the
Effectiveness of Internal Audit, now against the Public Sector Internal Audit
Standards

4.9 2 Are internal audit performance measures
monitored by the audit committee?

√ As part of the above report.

4.10 2 Has the audit committee considered the
information it wishes to receive from internal
audit?

√ Established committee reporting cycle with a forward work programme as a
standard agenda item.

P
age 124



No. Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Actions

EXTERNAL AUDIT
5.1 1 Do the external auditors present and discuss their

audit plans and strategy with the audit committee
(recognizing the statutory duties of external
audit)?

√

5.2 1 Does the audit committee hold periodic private
discussions with the external auditor?

√ Ad-hoc Meetings as necessary

5.3 1 Does the audit committee review the external
auditor's annual report to those charged with
governance?

√

5.4 1 Does the audit committee ensure that officers are
monitoring action taken to implement external
audit recommendations?

√

5.5 1 Are reports on the work of external audit and other
inspection agencies presented to the committee,
including the Audit Commission's annual audit
and inspection letter?

√

5.6 1 Does the audit committee assess the
performance of external audit?

√ External audit reports regularly to the committee giving members the
opportunity to robustly challenge the performance of external audit.

5.7 1 Does the audit committee consider and approve
the external audit fee?

√

ADMINISTRATION

Agenda administration
6.1 1 Does the audit committee have a designated

secretary from Committee/Member Services?
√

6.2 1 Are agenda papers circulated in advance of
meetings to allow adequate preparation by audit
committee members?

√

6.3 2 Are outline agendas planned one year ahead to
cover issues on a cyclical basis?

√ Established committee reporting cycle with a forward work programme as a
standard agenda item.

6.4 2 Are inputs for Any Other Business formally
requested in advance from committee members,
relevant officers, internal and external audit?

√ There is a standing item on the agenda which receives any Urgent Business

P
age 125



No. Priority Issue Yes No N/A Comments/Actions

Papers
6.5 1 Do reports to the audit committee communicate

relevant information at the right frequency, time,
and in a format that is effective?

√

6.6 2 Does the audit committee issue guidelines and/or
a proforma concerning the format and content of
the papers to be presented?

√

Actions arising
6.7 1 Are minutes prepared and circulated promptly to

the appropriate people?
√

6.8 1 Is a report on matters arising made and minuted
at the audit committee's next meeting?

√

6.9 1 Do action points indicate who is to perform what
and by when?

√

P
age 126



SOUTH HOLLAND DISTRICT COUNCIL

Report of: Executive Manager Governance - Mark Stinson

To: Governance and Audit Committee – 3 December 2015

(Author: Christine Morgan - Democratic Services Officer)

Subject: Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme

Purpose: To set out the Work Programme of the Governance and Audit Committee

Recommendation:

That the Committee gives consideration to the contents of this report and identifies any 
issues for discussion.

1.0 BACKGROUND

1.1 The Governance and Audit Committee regularly considers a variety of reports from Internal 
Audit, External Audit and the Section 151 Officer.

1.2 Many of these reports are considered at regular intervals, the majority being annually, half-
yearly or quarterly.

1.3 In addition to these reports, the Committee also considers issues on an ad-hoc basis with 
some reports arising from consideration of items at previous meetings.

1.4 Attached at Appendix A to this report is the Work Programme for the Governance and Audit 
Committee.  It lays out all meetings for the 2015/16 municipal year.  Alongside each of 
these meeting dates are issues considered by the Committee on a regular basis, together 
with the author of the report, its purpose and whether it is mandatory, and the frequency 
with which it is considered.

1.5 It has been agreed that this Work Programme be a regular item for consideration on the 
Committee’s agenda, thus creating a formal document laying out the work of the Committee 
in a clear, structured and organised way.

1.6 The attached document contains items considered on a regular basis, and also any ad hoc 
issues as and when they arise, for example, issues raised at a meeting to be covered at a 
future meeting, and any one-off issues. 

2.0 OPTIONS

2.1 To note and consider the current status of the Work Programme. 

2.2 To do nothing.

3.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATION

3.1 To allow Committee members to feed into the Work Programme on a regular basis, to 
ensure that it stays relevant and up to date.

Page 127

Agenda Item 12.



4.0 EXPECTED BENEFITS

4.1 The Work Programme is a formal document laying out the work of the Committee in a clear, 
structured and organised way, thus providing members with up to date and relevant 
information.

5.0 IMPLICATIONS

5.1 Constitution & Legal

5.1.1 Constitutional and Legal implications have been considered and in the opinion of the 
author, there are none arising out of this report.   However, the Work Programme should 
assist in providing a clear programme of work for the Governance and Audit Committee in 
line with the requirements laid out in the Council’s Constitution.

5.2 Risk Management 

5.2.1 Risk Management implications have been considered and in the opinion of the author, 
there are none.  However, one of the roles of the Governance and Audit Committee is to 
monitor the effective development and operation of risk management and corporate 
governance in the Council, and the Work Programme should assist in keeping track of risk 
issues.

6.0 WARDS/COMMUNITIES AFFECTED

6.1 No wards or communities will be affected by this post.

7.0 ACRONYMS 

7.1 None.

Background papers:- None

Lead Contact Officer
Name and Post: Christine Morgan (Democratic Services Officer)
Telephone Number: 01775 764454
Email: cmorgan@sholland.gov.uk

Key Decision: No 

Exempt Decision:  No 

This report refers to a Mandatory Service 

Appendices attached to this report:
Appendix A Work Programme for Governance and Audit Committee

Page 128



APPENDIX A
GOVERNANCE AND AUDIT – CALENDAR OF WORK PROGRAMME ITEMS 2015/16

Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

3 December 2015 SHDC Annual Audit Letter 2014/15 External Audit Mandatory/Constitutional requirement
To approve audit fees

Annually

KPMG – Audit Plan progress report External Audit To update Committee on progress. 
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

Quarterly

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

Quarterly

HRA Draft Estimates and Business Plan Section 151 Officer Delegated duty to review HRA 
Estimates
Not a statutory requirement.

Annual

Mid Term Treasury Report 15/16 Section 151 Officer To comply with Treasury 
Management Strategy, reporting 
requirements.

Half Yearly

Treasury Management Strategy 
Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision 
Policy Statement and Annual Investment 
Strategy 16/17

Section 151 Officer Mandatory requirement.
To review Treasury Management 
Strategy and approve Prudential 
Indicators.

Annual

Governance and Audit Committee Self 
Assessment

Finance Manager For confirmation.  
Good practice.

Annual

P
age 129



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

Risk Management Update Report (report 
by exception)

Chris Dean Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

3 March 2016 Audit Plan External Audit External Audit Plan – Mandatory 
Approval

Annual

Grant Claims 2014/15 External Audit External Audit Certification of Grant 
Claims – Mandatory Approval

Annual

KPMG – Audit Plan progress report External Audit To update Committee on progress. 
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

Quarterly

Internal Audit – Audit Plan Progress 
Report

Internal Audit To update Committee on progress of 
the plan.
Not mandatory, but part of 
Governance role.

Quarterly

Internal Audit Plan (plan for the year 
ahead)

Internal Audit Annual Internal Audit Workplan – 
Mandatory Approval

Annual

Audit Mandatory Enquiries Section 151 Officer To confirm the response of the 
external audit mandatory enquiries. 
External auditors are required to 
obtain an understanding on how those 
charged with governance exercise 
oversight of management’s processes 
in relation to fraud, laws and 
regulations and going concerns.
Good Practice

Annual

P
age 130



Date of Meeting Agenda item Author Purpose and whether mandatory Frequency

Risk Management Update Report (report 
by exception)

Chris Dean Part of Governance role – not 
mandatory

To each 
meeting

At the end of each municipal year, liaise with S151 Officer to programme regular items in the Work Programme for the next year

P
age 131



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3. Minutes
	5. SHDC Annual Audit Letter 2014/15
	Annual Audit Letter 2014/15
	Contents
	Section one�Headlines
	Appendices�Appendix 1: Summary of reports issued
	Appendices�Appendix 2: Audit fees
	Slide Number 6

	6. External Audit Progress Report and Technical Update
	External audit progress report and technical update
	External audit progress report and technical update – November 2015
	Slide Number 3
	External audit progress report – November 2015
	Slide Number 5
	�KPMG resources
	�KPMG resources
	�KPMG resources
	Slide Number 9
	�Technical update
	Technical update
	�Technical update
	�Technical update
	Technical update
	Technical update
	Technical update
	Technical update
	Technical update
	Slide Number 19
	�Appendix 1 – 2015/16 Audit deliverables
	Slide Number 21

	7. Internal Audit Update Report
	Internal Audit Progress Report App 4

	8. Mid Term Treasury Report 2015/16
	Appendix A SHDC Mid Term Treasury Report 2015-16 final

	9. Treasury Management Strategy Statement, Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy 2016/17
	Treasury Management Strategy Statement App A Final

	10. Governance and Audit Self-Assessment
	Self Assessment Appendix A

	12. Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme
	Enc. 1 for Governance and Audit Committee Work Programme


